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1Spatial plc

Final Results for the year ended 31 January 2013

Financial highlights

Revenue from operations increased to £12 1m (2012 £52m) '

1Spatial division achieved revenues of £9 7m and Adjusted* EBITDA of £1 4m {2 months 2012

revenues of £1 5m and Adjusted™ EBITDA of £0 3m)

Avisen division generated revenues of £2 Om and Adjusted” EBITDA of £29k (2012 revenues of
£3 3m and Adjusted* EBITDA of £0 3m)

Storage Fusion division generated revenues of £0 4m and Adjusted* EBITDA of £8k {2012

revenues of £0 4m and Adjustied” EBTIDA loss of £13k)

Overall Adjusted* EBITDA loss of £0 5m (2012 £0 5m)

Overall toss for the year of £4 4m following impairment of goodwill and intangible assets of £3 5m
(2012 loss of £1 4m)

Cash and cash equivalents** balance at 31 January 2013 of £3 2m (2012 £2 7m)

*Adjusted for strategic, integration and other one-off items
** As defined as cash, cash equivalents and short term investments and other financial assets
see note 13

Operational highlights

Restructuring of the 1Spatial Business to enable execution of new growth sirategy

Rebranding of 1Spahal Business to raise market visibility as a leading global provider of spatial
Big Data management

Focus on product development for National Mapping Agencies (NMA's) within 1Spatial Business
Product realignment and development to scale product offerings across cloud and on-premise
within the 1Spatial Business

Global Launch of 1Edit, a powerful spatial data editing solution with innovative touch screen and
desktop compatible for Data Capture & Edit in the field or office

Won a strategically important contract with US Census to provide software and related services
Won a significant contract with Ordnance Survey Ireland (OS), the first customer of our new
geospatial management suite *1SMS™

Post Period-End Highlights

Cn 24 May 2013 1Spatial announced the placing of new Shares, raising approximately £17m of

cash for the Group (after commission and expenses) to fund

- acquisttion of 90% of Star-Apic, a leading European provider of Geographic Information
Systems ("GIS") software and solutions,

- additional working capital for the enlarged Group,

- a sales and support centre in the Middle East, and

- product development, marketing and further potential acquisitton opporunities

Placing Shares admitted to trading on 13 June 2013

Dawvid Richards appointed as Deputy Non-Executive Chairman

On 14 May 2013, launched new 1EDIT software at Rotterdam Geo Spathal conference

\

Commenting on the results CEO, Marcus Hanke, said “1Spafial 1s enienng an exciting growth phase
following a successful Placing to raise funds for a highly complementary acquisiion as well as the fufure
strategic development and expansion of the business

it 1s the Board’s view that the Company 1s well placed to capitahise on opporfunities n the spatial Big Data
markel with a strong team in place and an exceptional product offenng The Company has an impressive
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and growng customer base and a healthy pipeline of opportuniies including National Mapping Agencies
and blue-chip companies

The addition of Star-Apic gives increased scale to the business as well as future growth opportunities with
management working over the next six months to integrate the two businesses

The Board 15 encouraged by the progress made dunng the start of the current financial year and looks
forward to the future with confidence ”
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Chairman’s Statement

1Spatial 1s a software and solutions provider to natonal mapping and charting agencies, uthbes companies and
defence and govemment departments globally Our technologies allow customers to make key business decisions by
captunng, managing, processing and analysing spatial data — in a way that tradihonal technalogies do not allow With
over 40 years of continual innovation and development, our products make the huge data they manage scalable,
flexible and highly accurate

The common focus for all companies within the Group going forward 1s to provide end users of data with both
assurance over its qualty and insight into its significance This 1s part of the ‘Big Data’ concept Big Data 15 a term
appled to data sets whose size 1s beyond the ability of commonly used software tools lo caplure, manage, and
process Big data has increased the demand for informaton management speciabsts and software firms specialising
only in data management and analytics, this industry is vaiued at several billion dollars globally and continues to grow
significantly each year

The year ended 31 January 2013 has been a year of achieving focus and clanty around the strategic direction of the
business This was further supported post year-end by a share placing raising approximately £17m (after expenses)
to support the Group's future strategy and growth plans including potential acquisitions, geographic expansion,
product development and potential future acquisitions  In parbcular, it has enabled the group to acquire 80% of Star-
Aptc for £5 2m (excluding direct costs of acquisition) a teading European provider of Geographic Information Systems
(“GIS™) software and solutions, specialising i land and infrastructure management The Directors believe that Star-
Apic 1s an important and highly complementary bolt-on acquisition, significantly enhancing 1Spatial’s capabilty in the
rapidly growing spatial Big Data market, and leveraging the opportunity for 1Spatal Products into the Star-Apic
customer base

In additien, post year-end, Dawid Richards, CEQ of WANdisco pic, joined the Board as Deputy Non-Executive
Charman, bnnging over 15 years’ expenence in the Software industry 1o the Group Dawid’s knowledge of the US
market which 15 Wdentfied as a key market for growlih for the 1Spatial business, 15 of particular mpertance | welcome
him to the Board duning this exciting penod of growth for 1Spatial | reported 1n my half year statement that the
company made excellent progress dunng the penod, particularly with respect to the 1Spatial division  This success
continued n the second half of the year, namely with the award of two sirategically important contracts for US
Census and Ordnance Survey Ireland {OSi1) These contracts demenstrate the pedigree of the spatial Big Data
product suile we offer, allowing these organisations to capture, process and query huge amounts of spatial data,
which must be highly accurately in near real-time

For OS), 1Spatal wili provide an ‘end to end’ National Mapping Solution OSi1 will be 1Spatal's flagship first customer
for the new tSpalial Management Suite (15MS) which will be launched in August 2013

We are very excried about our next generation products in the 1SMS Our continued investment in development has
enabled us to bnng to the market products that provide an innovative approach to the way organisations manage,
process and analyse spatial data, and we beheve it's a step change from what traditional technologies currently allow
In May we launched 1Edd, a revolutionary, touch screen compatible solution for fast and mtutive data-editing in the
field or office, and we have recewved significant interest in 1Edit from both customers and prospects alike

Our contract with the US Census further strengthens the long standing engagement we have with Census to provide
automated process to bang together geospatial data from vanous sources With the large, complex, mission critical
and growing spatial data that Census holds we are regarded as a strategic partner to help them progress towards
2015 for the decennial census, at which time the US Census will be updated continuously in near real-time

The company's long term growth strategy 1s based on exploting the opportunibes In its scalable mtellectual property
offenings from both the 1Spatial business and the Star-Apic business The Direclors believe that the acquisition of
Star-Apic will provide

. a utiibes solution thal can be sold into existing customers and markets as well as to new
customers and markets,

. access to new markets, such as France and North Afnca,

. addiional serwices and products to the Group's existing cusiomer base The Elyx software platform
15 buiit on the same core technology as 1Spatial's technology and can be integrated into the
1Spatial Management Suite easily and efficently,

. a map publishing tool (Mercator) te produce digital and paper maps which can be added onto
18MS,

. additional resource (o develop new products aligned to customer needs, ard

. oppontunities for the 1Spatat product offenngs across the Star-Apic customerbase

And lastly, | would ke to thank the management team and al! of our employees for their hard work and dedication
This has enabled us to navigate a challenging environment and strongly position 1Spatal for the future
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Financial position

Group revenue for the year was £12 1m up from £5 2m in 2012 due to the 12 month contnbution from the 1Spatial
Business that was acquired in November 2011 On a like-for-like basis, revenue growth was down on the pnor year
by £0 8m mainly as a result of reduced revenues In the Avisen business In 2012 Avisen made a one-off icence sale
in excess of £1 5m that was not repeated in 2013

All trading businesses, namely 1Spatial, Avisen and Storage Fusion made positive adjusted EBITDA contnbutions to
the Group Owerall, the Group has recorded an adjusted EBITDA loss of £0 5m, substantially due to head office
costs of £2 Om Over time, management has implemented plans to scale the operations in order absorb the fixed
cverhead costs associated with being a listed entity With the acquisiion of Star-Apic and good prospects for the
other busmesses, covenng these costs will be achievable

The overall net loss for the year 1s £4 4m The main reason for the loss i1s due to the y/mpaiment of the Awvisen and
Slorage Fusion goodwiil and intangible assets of £2 6m as well as £0 9m of amortsation of intangible assets and
other exceplional tems Whiist the Directors remain optimistic with respect to the long term prospects of the Avisen
and Storage Fusion busmnesses, there remams challenges i the short term based on the current pipehne of
opportunities

We have a strong balance sheet post year end lIollowing the placing After the acquisibon of Star-Aprc, the cash and
cash equivalents balance as at 25 June 1s £14m

Strategy and reorganisation

in the last annuat repont, our long term stated strategy was to continue to grow organically and acquisitively, and to
convert this growth into higher profit and improved cash flow for distnbutien to our shareholders, we have made
significant progress in this respect during the year and post year-end The cash received from the placing and the
acquisition of Star-Apic puts the Group n a good position for long term growth and scalabiity The Company 1s now
under one common branding of 1Spatal, but with three trading subsidianes, 1Spatial Business, Avisen UK and
Storage Fusion

1Spatial Division

The 1Spatial division has a strong customer base, working with some of the world's largest National Mapping
Agencies (NMAs) These relationships have been buillt over many years

1Spatial’s strategy 1s to achieve growth in our current marketplace, leverage our brand and scale the business Into
new geographwcal markets Key to this success will be a major focus on partnerships, so that we can leverage our
technology offenngs and provide more options for our customers Two successes dunng the penod that are
testament to our strategy are the contract wins with the Insh Mapping agency (OS1) and US Census

Buwilding on the current strong customer base, the growth strategy for the business will be to continue to focus on the
NMA market along with key vertical sectors such as utilities, which 1s where the Star-Apic acquisition will be a key
addiion

Awvisen UK

Avisen contmues to provide profitability improvemant services to its clients, which include Tesco and Unilever

Storage Fusion

Storage Fusion continues to develop, adding chents and partners to its unique storage resource analytical software
and providing nsight into these organisations' complex infrastructures With its Cloud enabled offenng it provides a
cost effective way to measure data storage usage and consumption, and with the huge growth forecast in the SAAS
marketplace the Storage Fusion product is very attractive

Conclusion and outlook

1Spatial 1s entenng an exciting growth phase following a successful Placing to raise funds fora highily complementary
acquistion as well as the future strategic development and expanston of the business

it 1s the Board's view that the Company s well placed to capitalise on oppoartunsties in the spatial Big Data rnarket with
a sfrong team n place and an exceptional product offening The company has an impressive and growmng customer
base and a healthy pipetine of opportunites including Natienal Mapping Agencies and blue-chip compantes

The additon of Star-Apic gives increased scale to the business as well as fulure growth opportunities with
management will be working over the next six months to integrate the two businesses
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The Board 1S encouraged by the progress made dunng the starl of the current financial year and looks forward to the
future with confidence ™

S Berry
Chairman
1 July 2013




1Spatial plc

Business and Financial Review

Business review

1Spatial plc consists of a group of innovative and market leading sofiware companies trading under individual brands,
18patial Business, Avisen and Storage Fusion A summary of these businesses is sef out below

- 1Spatal Business - Geospatial software development and consultancy business

- Awvisen - Management consultancy specialismg in profit improvement and exclusive distnbutor of Acom
Systems’ Software in the UK and Ireland

- Slorage Fusiwon - Independent Software Vendor specialising in storage analytics for the heterogeneous
storage estate delvered using Software as a Service ("SaaS") architecture

What our businesses do and their markets

1Spatial Business

Overview

1Spatial Business s a sofiware development company which provides spatial big data selutions and related services
The majonty of the business compnses the sale of its own 1Spatial software products and related services It 1s also
a reseller of other localion based software products

For more than 40 years, 1Spatial Business has been delivering solutions and services to public and private sector
orgamsations globally whe handle large volumes of spatial based business cnitical data

1Spatial Busingss's approach 1s to help compames make better use of their data (however large or complex) enabling
them to leverage the intelligence in location data to make better business decisions The use of 1Spatial's rules-
based technology ensures that qualty data 1s integrated effectively into daily business operations, whilst improving
performance, return on investment and problem solving large and national, geographically dispersed problems for its
customers

Some examples of customers who are using 1Spatial technology and what they are saying
Ordnance Survey of Great Bntain

“15patial was chosen fo provida centralised planning and management of Crdnance Survey's production activities, in
addiion to managing the large scale-data holdings that are used to generate market-leading products, such as OS
Mastermap

We are delighled to award this contract to 1Spatral as part of our continued refafionship We are proud to be able to
support the growing UK technalogy sector and are pleased to be working with 1Spatial on our core geospatial
infrastructure”

- Bob Goodnch, Director of Information Systems, Ordnance Survey

Ordnance Survay Ireland

*Ordnance Survey lreland has been tnaling 1Edit as a tool for mawntenance of our PRIMEZ product database
PRIMEZ2 1s the OSi real-world feature database that ensures Ireland has the accurate and up-lo-date spatial datasets
supporting improved govemment service delivery and economic developmen! i Irefand  The faciity for users to
interact with 1Eadit using @ portable device touch screen with a stylus or as a desktop with @ mouse, and the
integration it provides with our existing survey equipment means that our surveyors out in the field and staff who are
office based can ublise the same innavative tool for optimal efficrency This means thet we will be able to provide
more accurate and up-to-date date to our customers more frequently”

« — Lornane McNetney, Spatial Data and Infrastructure Manager, Ordnance Survey lreland
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[N

Some examples of where we have used our technology 15 as follows

United Utiies

1Spatial has developed a data improvement methodology, of which United Utitihes Head of ICT Business Solutions
said recently “Qur focus at Uniied Uliities (*UU™) 1s on providing better service to our customers and one of the ways
we're doing this 1s 1o give our emplayees a better view of what's happening nght across our asset base Good data 1s
the foundation of this programme and we're delighted to be using 1Spatial's expertise to help us build a clear picture
foruy "

1Spatial's target market and competitors

Market - products

1Spatial 1s structured to focus on two clear markets, with different business models and significant prospects for
growth and increased profilability

« Dala Providers
The Data Providers are those organisations that have the data (e g the National Mapping Agencies) and
require sofuttons to confirm rehiabiity of that data and a ‘user fnendly’ application to use it This i1s targeted at
the Nationa! topographic mapping and cadastral agencies Currently 17 of the 39 wortd's largest national
mapping agencies use 1Spatial's technology The Company will seek to extend is reach into this market
via development of s 1Spatial Management Suite (1SMS) which 1s due to be launched in August 2013
and through investment m our geographical reach and strategic partnenng agreements

*  Big Data Knowledge Management

These Companies use the informaton from the Data Providers to provide insight Big Data 1s a driver for
many orgamisations today Making sense of those elements of Big Dala that are relevant to managing an
organisations busmess processes and its efficiency 1s essential in remaining In business Location 1s a key
element in working oul what is relevant 1Spabai’'s common language rules engine allows organisations to
express relevance in terms like nearness, adjacent, alongside to denve relevant elements of Big Data and
hamessed them with their in-house collected data, reducing data costs and increase business efficiency
Typical of such 1Spatial customers are the Utities as they move to smart metenng/smart city business
models

Market - geographies

1Spatials mait markels are the UK and the EU with a global customer base and stralegic partnerships, covering the
US, France, Germany, Nordics, the Middle East and the Far East The Company has a wholly owned operating
subsidiary in Australia

Avisen
Overview

Awisen, the Group's management consuitancy business, focuses on providing global compantes with advice m
relation to improving overall company profitability One of the key tools that Avisen uses during this process 15
software technology called Acom Systems Based on a costing methodology designed by Harvard Professor, Dr
Robert Kaplan and Steve Anderson who 1s on the board of Acom, Acom uses transaction level cost allocation to
reveal profit improvement opportunities across the enterprises customers, products, segments, vendors, channels
and processes This enables clients to make fact-based, profit-focused decisions which Avisen then help them
mplement Although miche, the Avisen brand 13 umiquely positioned as 1t has the exclusive UK distnbution nghts for
Acorn Systems’ products and global distnbution nghts outside of the USA, as well as a skiled team of technical and
business consultants

Avisen's target market and competitors

Avisen operates in the enterpnse market place where a typical client 1s a company with revenue in excess of £100m
and with a high-volume of transactions where they understand the total cost of running the business but cannot see
how each product, customer or channel 1s driving up thal cost These are sectors such as fast moving consumer
goads, distnbution, retail, financial services, professional services and pharmaceuhcals

Avisen’s compettors are distnbutors of other profitabiity management software (SAP, Oracle, Prodocapo, SAAS
Institute etc) Our focus 15 on building recurmng revenue from software sales and support conlracts This enables us
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to work with, and provide paid services to the “Big 4" consulting companies and other miche consultancy businesses
providing profitabilty improvement services using Acorn We markel directly 1o these busmnesses and to the finance
and operalional executives of our target clents

Storage Fusion
Overview

Storage Fusion 1s the author of Storage Resource Analysis ("SRA") which prowides comprehensive analytics for
enlerpnse storage environments through an affordable SaaS service and wiihout the need for disruptive probes and
agents

SRA cuts through the complexity of heterogeneous slorage environments without the necessity for expensive on-
premise software, on-going support and maimntenance, a ime-consuming implementation project. disruptive future
upgrades and additional hardware 1o run the solution This delivers detailed analytics within a matter of hours

Storage Fusion empowers compames with the analytics they need to make informed decisions about their storage
resources, thereby reducing |T expenditure and improving business operations

With complete transparency an entire storage environment, Storage Fusion's SRA solution enables an organisation
1o undertake the following business cntical activihies to deliver operational effectiveness

- Storage reclaim

- Intemal charge-back

- Data centre migration / consolidation

- Vendor rationalisation

- Technology swaps / refreshes

- Asseltracking

- Capacity planning

- Depreciation reporting

- Cloud mgration

- Virtualization and thin provisioning analysis

- Storage tienng

- Metncs analysis and report trending

- ldenufication of configuration excepbons
The demand for our SRA product has been clearly demonstrated foltowing the signing of contracts with a worldwide

information technology company who will be acting as one of our partners

Storage Fusion's target market and competitors

Storage Fusion's target market 15 any organisation that needs o report across their storage estate  Typically these
are global compantes that have multiple data centres, hardware from more than one storage vendor and in excess of
100 terabytes of storage

SRA Is also used as a presales assessment tool by hardware vendors and partners to augment thew hardware and
professional services revenue

In March 2012 Gariner's report, the Magic Quadrant for Storage Resource Management and SAN Management
Software, Storage Fusicn was noted as a new vendor within the segment

Strategy and objectives of the business

Our business strategy 1s to continue to pursue growth, both organically and acquistively, and to convert this growth
into higher profit and cash fiow for distnbubion to our shareholders

The management team undertook a full sirategic review of the business in 2012 and set the following objectives

»  Improve organic growth in the 1Spatial Business by

- Growing revenue with existing customers through customer care programmes, ncrease product
offening and migration

- Targeting new cuslomers within current known sectors of NMAs, utiities and defence

- Developing a suie of products to sell to existing and new customers
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- Re-branding and re-defining our corporate messaging
- Strengthening our strategic partnership channel
« Improve organic growth m the Avisen business by
- Utihsing our skilled workforce to deliver on key contracts
- Planned campaigns to increase awareness within key target sectors Using our success with
existing customers to demonstrate our abilibes
*  Improve organic growth in the Storage Fusion business by
- Implementing a marketing sirategy to increase product awareness, brand and revenue
- Re-defining corporate messages and wentifying key sectors to approach
* Identdy key acqusiton targets which complement existing businesses

Principal nsks

With respect to our stated strategy

Improve orgamc growth in the 1Spatial plc business

The prncipal market nsks are that the current slowdown may continue and that competition may reduce the Group's
market share and margins In order fo mitigate these nsks, the Group constanlly montors the market through
participalion wn ndustry groups and monitonng of competdors This information enables us to make informed
decisions about where we should be targeting and aids our discussions with suppliers

Due to the recent recession and the continuing slow growth cycle n Western economies, companies may require a
robust business case before investing in IT products and services This may have the effect of increasing deal cycles
and reducing deal size However, we believe this will be offset against an increase in demand for consulting services
to support the chents through this process

Identify key acquisiion targets which complement the current existing businesses

There 1s a nsk that the Company may not identify sutable acquisitions for merging with the existing business The
Board beleves that this nsk is low as the Group has a pipeline of opportunities compiled through constantly
researchmg in the market and networking by the Board wath its advisors and other industry contacts

There s a nsk that acquisihons identified may not be successful, either because the acqusition rtself was not as
expected or because of poor integration  In respect of the acquisiton tself, the Board undertakes the appropnate
due diligence tn advance With respect to the successful integration and operation of the acquired businesses, this
nsk 1s mitigated by a very structured approach to the integration process, dedicated teams and careful momtonng of
performance post acquisition

In addition to the above, the Group also faces the following prnincipal nsks

Unfavourable econormic conditions

In the case of unfavourable economic conditions the Group would need to assess the ongoing costs of the business
and rationalise where appropnate  If these steps were not sufficient to make businesses commercially viable then the
Board would have to reconsider the Group's overall strategy

Key management and consultants may leave the busmess

In order to mitigate this nsk, the Group aims to create a tewarding working environmeni that will attract staff by
offenng competitive salanes and benefits, struclured career paths, tallored traming and by encouraging free thinking
and nnovation

Rehance on key customers

The Group has rellance on certain key customers The management team mamtains good relationships with its
customers through continued communication throughout the year Should a key customer choose not to contract
with us again, we may need to re-constder our overall strategy and our cost base

Refance on third party software

In the Awvisen UK business certam aspects of our software offenngs are dependent on third partes and are
susceptible to rapid technological change Any absence or failure of key third-party products could have a matenal
effect an our business

10
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To miigate thus nsk, we keep under review all key commercial relatonships and developments in technology 1n our
marketplace

Kaaping our Storage Fusion software supported and up to date with current technologies

Maintaining the hardware support matnx and features 1s an essential part of whal Storage Fusion does, in order that
customers can contnue to report across thewr entire storage environment Our storage software architects and
development team work exiensively with our customers and partners to ensure that SRA 1s kept up-to-date with
cumrent technologies and that the product continues to be valuable and useable This product strategy ensures that
SRA’s storage analytics i1s more advanced than anything available in the marketplace today

If the above maintenance and support of the software was not underiaken, there 18 a nsk that Storage Fusion would
not be able to fuffil its customer gbligations

A major technology failure may adversely disrupt operations

1Spatial pic prepares recovery ptans for all foreseeable situations so that business operations can continue should a
major faillure occur In terms of [T, all files etc are backed up off site and all staff have access 1o laptops to conttnue
working should such an incident occur  The Group 1s approaching completion of mowving all IT infrastructure to third
party providers This will reduce the nsk and cost of managing ihe infrastructure and the sole rehance on key
ndviduals in the team

Financial review
Consolidated results for the year

A summary of the trading results of the operations for the year ended 31 January 2013 1s s&t out below It should be
noted that 1Spatial's resulls for 2012 only included 2 months of trading

|_ 2013 I 2012

Head Storage  15pstial Head Storage 15patial
offica  Avisen Fusion Group Total office  Avisen Fusion Group Total
2 montha

E'000 £000 £'700 £'000 £'000 E'000 £'000 E£'000 £000 £'000
Revenue - 1,995 397 9,687 12,079 - 3305 390 1,533 5228
Gross profit - 478 397 423 5108 - 710 380 755 1855
Ad]usted® EBITDA {1,956) 29 B 1,386 (533} {1,134} 305 {13) 330 (512}
Deprecation (24} (1) {48) (74} (152) (1) m (13 (1) (42)
Amortisation - {8) {519) (378) (203} . 8 (431) {66) (505)
Imparment of intangible assets - (685} (1,880) - (2 575} - - .
Strategie, intagration and other ona off
tems {166) (208) 84 (344) (622) (518) 10 - {34) (540)
Qperating {loss)yprofit (2,143) (881) (2,353) 592 (4,735)  (1,661) 300 (a51) 219 {1,599)
Net finance cost 10 {2) {1} 2) 5 12 5 (U] (10) [
{Loss)/profit before tax (2,13) (883) (2,354) 590 (4,780) {1,649) 305 (458} 209 {1,593}
Tax - 2 268 118 387 - 43 126 k] 173
(Loss)/profit for the year _(2,133) [881) (2,088) 709 {4393) {1,843) 348 {329) 210 {1,420}

*Adyusted for strategic, integration and other one off items

Revenue

Group revenue increased from £5 2m to £12 1m  This 1s as a result of the inclusion of the 1Spatial Business results
for 12 months in the current year but only 2 months i the previous year  On a like-for-like basis revenue growth 15
down on the pnor year by £0 8m which 15 mainly as a result of reduced revenues in the Avisen business |n 2012
Avisen made a one off lcence sale in excess of £1 5m that was not repeated 1n 2013

Operating loss

The Group made an operating loss in the year of £4 4m The main reason for the loss 1$ due to the impairment of the
Awvisen and Storage Fusion goodwill and intangible assets of £2 6m and £0 9m of amortisation of intangible assets
and £0 6m of strategic, integratton and other one off tems Whilst the Directors remain optmistic with respect to the
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long term prospects of these businesses, there remains challenges in the short term based on the current pipeline of
ocpportunities  Following the strategic realignment of the business, a number of one-off tems were incurred mamly
related to integration costs and re-orgamsation such as redundancy costs

Adjusted* EBITDA
The overall Adjusted” EBITOA for the year was a loss of £0 5m (2012 loss of £05m)  Taking the man trading
entities in turn,

* - 1Spatial made an Adjusted* EBITDA profit of E1 4m This compared to a £0 3m Adjusted* EBITDA
profit in the previous year although this was only for a 2 month penod Management are pleased
with the 1Spatal result for the year and more importantly the strategic contracts won In the second
half of the financial year which should have a positive impact on the results of future years

- Awvisen achieved an Adjusted®* EBITDA profit of £28k This was a disappointing result however
certain overhead cosis were removed from this business dunng the year and after the year end
This should enhance \he resulis going forward

- There was no significant change in the performance of the Storage Fusion business with a small
Adjusted* EBITDA profit of £8k in 2013 compared o0 a small Adjusted* EBITDA loss of £13k in the
pnor year Management was disappointed by the lack of growth and will continue to review and
assess the Sforage Fusion busmness dunng 2014

- Head office costs were £2 Om in the penod compared to £1 1m in the pnor year penod This was
due to expansion of the board followtng the acquisthion of 1Spatal in 2012 and other refated costs

Amortisation and impaiment of intangible assets

Amortisation of ntangible assets in the pencd was £0 9m (2012 £05m) This increase 1s due to a full year of
amortisation with respect to 1Spatial The large iImpairment in the penod was with respect to Avisen of £0 7m and
Storage Fusion of £1 9m as discussed above In the operating loss section

Strategic, integration and other one off items
In accordance with the Group's policy, these costs were significant in the year and therefore they have been analysed
separately in note 7 The main components are

Strategic costs of £14k (2012 £0 3m) — The mamn proportton of these costs are professional and advisor fees in
relation to the 1Spatial Business acquisition in accordance with IFRS 3 (Revised) such cosis are no longer able to
be capitalised as part of the cost of acquisition

Costs of duphcation and integration £0 6m (2012 £0 2m) - This cost mainly represents redundancy and compromise
costs

Tax

The tax credit of £0 4m, (2012 £0 2m credit) in the year mamly relates 1o deferred tax credits on the overall net
postion on capralisation and amortisation of intangible assets, combined with tax credds of £0 1m (2012 £02m) n
relation to research and development tax claims made

2012 - Discontinued operations
Discontinued operations relate to the Inca Software business which was disposed on 1 Apni 2011

Consolidated statement of financlal position
The Group's financial position at 31 January 201315 set out in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Non-current assets

The most significant component of non-current assets at 31 January 2012 1s the intangible asset balance of £6 9m
{2012 £9 7m) The main reason for this decrease 1s the amortisation n the penod along with the impatrment of the
Storage Fusion and Avisen goodwill and intangible asset balances The Board is comfortable with the carrying
amounts of Goodwill and Intangible assets that are being camed forward

Current assets

The Group has currer assels of £6 1m at 31 January 2013 (2012 £8 4m) The decrease in current assets 1s mainly
due to the decrease In trade and other recevables There are two mawn reasons for this  Firstly there was a £1 3m
defermred consideralion debtor in 2012 that was recewved in 2013  Secondly there was a ugnificantly large Avisen
trade recevable balance of £1 6m al the end of 2012 (which was mainly in refation to the large heence sale that year)
The equivalent Avisen balance at the end of 2013 was £0 2m

Liabiites

This overall position has remained relatively unchanged on the pnor penod with total current liabilities of £5 7m at 31
January 2013 (2012 £6 2m)
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Non current habilities

The Group's non-curreni tiabilities were £0 7m (2012 £7 1m) These figures relate to deferred tax habiliies mainly
ansing on intangible assets The reduchon i1s due to the deferred tax release on the amortisaion/impaiment charges
on the trading businesses in the year These are ‘non-cash’ habiliies

Shareholders’ equity

Sharehelders’ equity 1s set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity The overall decrease in net assets
1s mainty as a result of the losses for the year The balance sheet position has been strengthened post year end
following the placing on 12 June 2013

Consolidated statement of cash flows
QOverall the Company generated cash in the year of £0 5m (2012 £2 2m) and had cash &t the end of the year of
£32m (2012 2 Tm)

Key ponts to note are as follows

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating cash of £0 1m was generaled in the year (2012 £3 Om outflow) This 15 mainly as a result of some postive
working caprtal inflows in 2013 (for example the large Avisen debtor collected dunng the year - refer to current assets
secton above) compared to outflows in 2012 The overall trading posiion of adjusted resulls plus exceptional cash
costs i both years as presented in the income statement are broadly consistent at £1 2m loss in 2013 and £1 1m
loss in 2012

Cash flows from investing activities

The most signfficant inflow frem investing actmties was the £1 3m cash inflow on the sale of Inca Software (2012
£5 2m) Cash was invested in property plant and equipment of £0 2m (2012 £0 2m) and tn product development and
other intangible assets of £0 7m (2012 £0 5m)

Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings of £51k were repaid in the year leaving a net borrowings figure of £49k at 31 January 2013

Net funds/(debt)

Overall, £0 5m of cash was generated in the year (2012 £2 2m) At the end of the year the Group has net funds of
£32m (2012 27Tm) Since the year end approximately £17m has been received following the share placing which
took place on 12 June 2013

Key Performance Indicators (KPls)
The Board 1s focused on a number of financial KPis that are used to measure performance

Growth in revenue
Growth n total gross profit
Growth in total Adjusted EBITDA,

The Board 15 gong to review these KPIs dunng 2013 to ascertain whether these are stil appropnate i light of the
strategy for each busmess within the group

The overall KPI's for the group are set out below

- KP1 Met Total Total Vanance %
2013 2012
£'000 £'000 £000
Revenus Yes . 12,079 5,228 6,851 131 04%
Gross profit Yes 5,106 1,855 3,251 175 26%
Adjusted*EBITDA No (533) {512) (21) {4 10)%

As noted above, all of the KPI's have been met except for Adjusted* EBITDA which 1s al approximately the same
ievel The main reason for achieving the Revenue and Gross profil Increases 1s due to the mclusion of 1Spatal for a
full year tn 2013 Taking the resulls on a segmental basis and taking a time pro-rated like for like figure for the
1Spatial business, the following results are achieved

13




1Spatial ple

2 mths
Pro rata 12 months 2 mths
15patial KPI Met 1spatial KPl Met 15patial Variance %
2013 2012 2012
£'000 £'000 €£'000 £'000

Revenue Yes 9,687 9,198 1,533 489 5%
Gross profit No** 4,231 4,530 755 {299} {7)%
EBITDA No** 1,386 1,380 130 {594} {30)%
Avisen KPl Met Avisen Awvisen Varnance %

2013 2012

£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue No *** 1,995 3,305 {1,310} (40)%
Gross profit No*** 478 710 (232) {33)%
EBITDA No*** 9 305 {276} (90)%
Storage fusion  KPI Met Storage Fusion Storage Fusion Variance %

2013 2012

£'000 £'000 £'000
Revenue Yes 397 390 7 2%
Gross profit Yes 397 390 7 2%
EBITDA Yes 8 (13) 21 N/A

Notes on KPIs not met

* 1Spatal ** - The December and January results of 1Spatial in 2012 were for a short unrepresentative penod
of the gross margin and EBITDA when compared to the 2013 year on a time pro-rated basis This KP| can

be assessed more appropnately at the end of 2014
* Awvisen *** - The results of 2012 contamned a one-off icence sale of approximately £1 5m which was not
repeated on 2013 and therefore had an adverse effeci on the KPI
The Group does not curently have any specific non financial KPI's which are measured on aregular basis
Group prospects and future developments

The management team remains committed to continuing its stated strategy of
*  Improve organic growth within all of its businesses
* Identify key acquisition targets which complement the current existing bustnesses
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Directors’ report

The Dwectors present therr annual report on the affairs of the Company and the Group, together with the audited
consohdated financial statements and the independent auditors’ report for the year ended 31 January 2013 in
accordance with International Financial Reportmg Standards (IFRS's) as adopied by the EU

Results and dividends
The resulls for the Group for the year and the Group and company's financial position at the end of the year are
shown in the attached financial statements

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dwvidend (2012 £Ni)

Business review and future developments
The requirements of the business review have been considered within the Chawrman’s statement on pages 4 to 6 and
business and financial reviews on pages 7 {o 14

Pancipal activities

The pnncipal actvily of the Group 1s the development and sale of IT software along with related consultancy and
support The pnncipal activity of the Company 1s that of a parent holding company which manages the Group's
strategic direction and undertying subsidianes

1Spatial plc (formerly Avisen pic) 1s a company incorporated in England and Wales The registered office of the
Company 1s Pannell House, Park Street, Guildford, Surrey, GU1 4HN

Details of the business activities dunng the year can be found in the business and financial review on pages 7 to 14

Changes in share captal

Details of movement in share capital are set cut in nole 17 to the financial statements
Post balance sheet events
Post batance sheet events are shown n note 25 to the financial statemenis

Going concern

The Company’s business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
positton are set out In the business and financial review on pages 7 to 14 along with the Company's financial position
and its cash flows In addiion, note 3 to the financial stalements include the Company's objectives, policies and
processes for managing its capital, s financial nsk management objectives, detads of its financial instruments, and
its exposures to credit nsk and Liquidity nsk

The Crrectors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to contnue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concem basis of accounting i prepanng
the annual financial statements

Directors’ \ndemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Diectors have the benefit of an indemruty which 1s a qualfying third
party provision as defined by Section 234 of the Companes Act 2006 The mdemnity was n force throughout the last
financial year and 1s currently in force The Company also purchased and maintained throughout the financial year
Directors’ and officers’ habitity msurance in respect of dself and its Directors
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Policy for payment of creditors

The Company's policy, which 15 also applied to the Group, 1s to agree terms and conditions for its business
transactions with suppliers and endeavour to make payment to these lerms, subjec! to the terms and condrions being
met by supphers The Company does not follow a specitfic code or standard of payment practice

At 31 January 2013 the Company's main supphers, in respect of continuing activities, had an average of 57 days
(2012 38 days) purchases outstanding in trade payables

Al 31 January 2013 the Group’s main suppliers, i respect of continuing activities, had an average of 49 days (2012
41 days} purchases cutsianding in trade payables

Employees

The Group places considerable value on the involvement of its employees and has continued its practice of keeping
them mformed of matlers affectng them as employees and the vancus factors affecting the performance of the
Group

The Directors recognise that contnued and sustamed improvement n the performance of the Group depends on s
abiity to atiract, motivate and retain employees of the highest calbre Furthermore, the Drrectors beheve that the
Group's ability to sustan a compettive advantage over the long term depends in a large part on ensunng that all
employees contribute to the maximum of their potential The Group 15 committed to improving the performance of all
employees through development and training

The Group 15 an equal opportunity employer The Group's policies seek to promote an environment free from
discnmination, harassment and victmisation and to ensure that no employee or applicant 15 treated less favourably
on the grounds of gender, mantal stalus, age, race, colour, natronalty or national ongin, disabilty or sexual
onentation or 15 disadvantaged by condiions or requirements, which cannot objectively be justified Entry inta, and
progressicn within the Group, 1s solely determmed on the basis of work ¢ritena and individual ment

The Group continues to give full and farr consideratton to applications for employment made by disabled persons,
having regard to thewr respective aptitudes and abihtes The pohcy includes, where practicable, the continued
amployment of those who may become disabled dunng therr employment and the prowision of training and career
development and promotion, where appropnate

Donations
The Group and Company did not make any chartable donations m the year (2012 £nil)

Directors
The Directors who served the Company dunng the year or have been appointed thereafter, are shown below

M Hanke

C Mitverton

M Sanderson

S Berry (Non-Executive Chawman)

D Richards (Non-Executive Deputy Chairman, Appainted 12 June 2013)
M Yeoman (Non-Executive)

M Battles {Non-Executive, Resigned 21 May 2013)

N Snape (resigned 14 June 2012)

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting i accordance with the Company's Amticles of Assocation Clare Miverton
and Marcus Yeoman will be will be retinng as directors and, being ehgible, offenng themseives for re-election as a
director of the Company Dawvid Richards has been appomnted as a director since the last annual general meeting and
15 therefore retinng as a dwector in accordance with the Company's articles of assocration and, being eligible, offering
timseif for re-election as a director of the Company
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Substantial interests
The Directors have been notified of the following substantial shareholdings in excess of 3% of the ordinary share
capital of the Company as at 13 June 2013

_Name Number of Percentage of Issues Shared
| __|_ Shares Capital o
| Hargreave Hale Ltd 72,272,300 _1111%
| J O Hambro Capita! Managemeni 43,191,667 _ | 664% .
Liontrust Asset Management 39,278092 [604% _
Mike Sanderson 137,685,764 575% ]
"Legal & General Investment
M?ﬁlagement o _ST 6-0"_0_20 5 36% -
| Investec Asset Management | 31,215000 _ | 480% _ —_—
| Marcus Hanke __ 29,124,841 | 4 48% R
"M&G Investments | 27,250,000 | 419% __
'ﬂd_gl_lty_ Vy_o_dque tnvestment _ 127250000 419% ]
“SFM UK Management LLP___ | 27,250,000 1 419% _ __ _
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset
'__Ma’r.lgagemenl 23'52_8_'_{92 2 GET? —
Artemis Fund Managers Ltd 21,666,667 333%

Except as referred to above, the Directors are not aware of any person who was nterestad in 3% or more of the
issued share capital of the Company or could directly or indirectly, jointly or severally, exercise control

Drrectors’ responsibilities statement in respect of the annual repert and the financial statements
The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Repor and the Group and parent company financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Direclors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group and parent company financial statements th accerdance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union  Under company law the Directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affarrs
of the Group and company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that perod  In prepanng these financial
statements, the Directors are required to

» select sulable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

* make judgements and accountng estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been foliowed, subject to any matenal deparlures
disciosed and explained in the Group and parent company financial statements respectively, and

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's lransactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positon of the Company and
the Group and enable them 1o ensure that the financial stalements comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as
regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulatton They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other rregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of the website Legisiation in the Unsted Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Pnncipal nsks and uncertainties
For further detalls on pnncipal nsks and uncertainties, refer to the business and financial review on pages 7 10 14

Ftnancral instruments
Financial nsk management objectives and policies
Dunng the year the Group’s pnncipal financial instruments are bank loans, bank overdrafts and cash The mamn

puipose of these financial instruments 1 to rase finance for the Group’s operations The Group has vanous other
financial instruments such as trade recewables and trade payables which anse directly from is operations
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The main nsks ansing from the Group's financial instruments have been cash flow and far value interest rate nsk,
crednt nsk, igudity nsk, pnce nsk and capifal nsk  The Board reviews and agrees pclicies for managing each of these
nsks and they are summansed below

Cash flow and interest rate nsk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially ndependent of changes m market interest rates

The Group's exposure to nsk for changes in interest rates related pnmanly to the Group's bank Ivan and overdraft
obligations Bank loan and overdraft interest 1s charged on a vanable rate basis The Group's exposure 1o interest
rate nsk 15 hmited given the leve! of debt in place Should subslantial facilities be put i place in the future then the
board will censider the impact of such facilities and whather it will be appropnate to hedge the interest rate nsk

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy thid parties and independent credit checks and credit imits are
managed by the trading entities Credit imits can only be exceeded if authorised by the 1Spatal plc board
Recewable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts 1$ not
significant

There are no significant concentrahions of credit nsk within the Group

Liquidity nsk

The Group’s objective 1s to mantain sufficient funds to support the ongoing strategic and trading activities of the
Group The detaled forecasting 1s camed out at local level in the operating companies of the Group This 1s
combined Into a group cash flow forecast The Group forecasts are compared lo avaifable faciities to ensure that
sufficient headraom 1s anticipated

Pnce nsk

The main price nsk that the Group 1s exposed to 15 changes in the price of third party software and mamntenance that
it uses i the solubons Il suppiies to customers When quoting for business the Group always obtamns fixed price
quotations from supphiers before submiting a prce to the customer

Capital nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going congern In
order fo provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mantain an optimal captal
structure to reduce the cost of capital

in order to mawntan or adjust the capitat structure, the Group may adjust the amount of retum of capdal and dividends
paid to shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets/businesses to reduce debt The Group monitors capital on the
basis of the geanng ratio

Disclosure of information to auditors

- so far as each director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware

- each direclor has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director m order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Company's auddors are aware of that
information

Independent auditors
In accordance with Section 439 of the Companies Acl 2006, a resolution proposing that PncewaterhouseCoopers
LLP be re-apponted will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Annual general meeting
Notice of the annual general meeting to be held on 13 August 2013 1s set out in the crcular included with this
document

Signed by order of the board

C Milverton (Director)
1 July 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1SPATIAL PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements of 1Spatasl plc for the year ended 31 January 2013 which compnss
the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the
Consolidatad Statement of Changes in Equity, the Consclidated Staterant of Cash Flows and the related notes The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in theiwr preparation 13 apphcable law and Intemational Ftnancial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibilites Statement set cut on page 17, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they gve a true and fair view Our
responsibibty 1s to audit and express an opimion on the financial statements i accordance with applicable taw and
International Standards an Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the cpinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s mambers as a body mn
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purposs  We do not, (n giving
thesa opinions, accept or assume responsility for any other purposa or 1o any other person to whom this report 1s
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in wnting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts ang disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policias are appropnate to the Group's circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimatas
made by the Directors, and the overall presantation of the financial statements In addition we read all the financial
and non-tnancial information in the Annual Report to dentify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial
statements f we become aware of any apparenl matenal misstatements or inconsisiencios we cansidar the
imphication for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In aur opinten the Group financial statements

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s affairs as at 31 January 2013 and of its loss and cash
flows for the year then ended,
have been propery prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurapean Umon,
have been prepared in accordance with the requiramants of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescnbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimon the mformation given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the Group financiat
statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Group financral statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report In respect of the following matiers where the Companies Act 2006 requiras us to report to
you if, in our opmion

s certain disciosures of dwectors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
= we have not received afl the information and explanations we require for our audst

Other matter
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of 1Spatial pk for the year ended 31
January 2013

WleT oo ke

Miles Saunders (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading

1 July 2013
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1Spatial plc
Consolidated statement of comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 January 2013

2013 2012
Note £'000 _£'000
Revenue 5 12.079 5,228
Cost of sales (6,973) (3 373)
Gross profit 5,106 1,855
Other operaling mcome 21 -
Administrative expenses (9.912) (3,454)
(4,785) {1,599)
Adjusted* EBITDA (533) (512)
Less depreciation (152) 42)
Adjusted® EBITA (685) {554)
Less amortrsation and impaiment of intangible assets {3,478) (505)
Less strategic, mtegration and cther one off tems 7 (622) (540)
Operahing loss 6 {(4,785) {1,599)
Fimance income 8 14 26
Finance cosis 8 (9) {20)
Net finance income 5 6
Loss before tax {4,780) (1,593)
Income tax credit 9 387 173
Loss from continuing operations 5 {4,393) {1,420}
Discontinued operations
{L.oss) from discontinued operations 5 - (54)
Gain on disposal of discontnued operations - 464
Loss for the year 18 (4,393} {1,010
Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences ansing on translation of net assets of
foregn operations 18 35 6
Other comprehensive income for he year, nal of tax 35 6
Total comprehensve loas
Loss for the year 18 {4 393) {(1,010)
Total comprehensive loss attnhutable to equity
sharahotders of the Company {4,358) {1,004)
Loss per ardmary share expresaad in
pence per ordinary share from continuing operations
Basic 21 (1 25) {0 57)
Diluted 21 {125) (0 57)
Loss per ordinary share expressed in
pence per ordinary share from operations
Basc 21 (125 (0 59)
Diluted 21 {1 25 (0 59)

*Adjusted for strategic, inlegration and other one off items (note 7)
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1Spatial plc
Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 January 2013

Registered number 5429800

2013 2012

Notes £'000 £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets mcluding goodwill 10 6,928 9,735
Preperty, plant and equipment 11 265 244
Total non-current agsets 7,184 9,979
Current assets
Inventones 14 41
Trade and other receivables 12 2,783 5,551
Current iIncome tax recewvable 107 60
Cash and cash equivalents 13 3.216 2734
Total current assets 6,120 8,386
Total assets 13,314 18,365
Liabilities
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 14 {5.686) (8.018)
Current income tax habilties 4] (92)
Borrowings 15 {49) (51)
Total currant habihities {5,742) (8,161)
Non-current hlatilhities
Bormowings 15 - {51)
Deferred tax 16 {748) {1,035)
Total non-current abilities {748) {1,086)
Total iabihties {6,490) (7.247)
Net assets 5.824 11,118
Share capital and reserves
Share capial 17 12,572 12,556
Share premium account 17 6,503 6,455
Own shares held 17 {306) (308)
Share based payment reserve 18 87 87
Merger reserve 18 13.800 13,900
Reverse acquisiton reserve 18 {11,584) (11,584)
Currency translation reserve 18 2 (33)
Accumulated losses 18 {14,650) {10,257)
Total equity attnbutable to shareholders of the
parent 6,824 11,118

The financiat statements on pages 20 to 56 were approved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board on 1 July 2013 and

signed on its behalf by

C Milverton
Director
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1Spatial plc
Consolidated statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 January 2013

2013 2012

Notes £'000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/(used) in operations (a) 127 (3.225)
Interest receved 14 26
Interest paid (9) (37N
Tax (pard)received {34) 232
Net cash generaled/{used} in operating activibes 98 (3,004)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquistion of subsidianes (net of cash acquired) - 661
Cash received on disposal of subsidary 1,300 5,189
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {231) {156}
Expenditure on product development caprtalised (671) (476)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 31 6
Net cash generated from investing activiies 429 5,224
Cash flows from financing activittes
Increase in factonng account - 121
Repayment of borrowings {51) {100}
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing actvities {51) 21
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 476 2,241
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 2,734 493
Effects of foreign exchange on cash and cash
equivalents 4] -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (b) 3,216 2,734

Cash flows from discontnued operations can be summarnsed for each of the main cash flow headings as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Cach flows from operating activies
Net cash used In operating actvities - {133
Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash generated from investing activities - 5,189
Cash flows from financing activities
Net cash generated from investing activities - 121
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Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

(@) Cash generated froml{used in}) trom operations

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Continuing operations
Loss before tax {4,780) (1.593)
Adjusiments for
Depreciation charge 152 42
Amortisation 903 505
Impairment 2513 -
Expense recognised in respect of shares issued in
exchange for consulting services 64 -
Net foreign exchange movement 29 6
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 26 -
Loss on disposal of goodwill 62 -
Decrease/(Increase) in inventones 27 (29)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 1,468 {1.073)
Decrease n rade and other payables (332) (961)
Finance ((ncomelcost — net {3} (8
Cash generated from/ (used in) continuing
_operations 127 (3,109)
Discontinued operations
Net loss before tax - (54)
Adpustments for
Depreciation charge - 19
Amorhigsation and impaiment - 58
Increase in trade and other recewvables - (137)
{Decrease) n tade and other payables - {29)
Finance cost — net - 17
Cash generated from discontinued operations - {116)
Cash generated/(used) in operations 127 (3,225)
{b) Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds
2013 2012
£000 £'000
Increase in cash n the year 476 2,241
Net cash outflow from decrease in bank loans 51 100
Net cash outflow/(infiow) in respect of factonng - (121)
Changes resuling from cash flows 527 2,220
Loans and finance leases acquired with subsidary - (96)
Factonng account acquired with subsidiary - 277
Effect of foreign exchange 8 -
Change i net funds 535 2,401
Net funds at beginrung of year 2632 21
Net funds at end of year 3,167 2,632
Analysis of net funds
Cash and cash equivalents classified as
- Current assets 3,216 2,734
Other loans (49) {102)
Net funds at end of year 3,167 2,632
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 January 2013

1 General information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 January 2013 compnse 1Spatial pic ('the
Company’) and its subsidianes (together ‘the Group’}

The pnncipal actwities of the Company and its subsidianes are described within the Directors’ report, pages 1510 18

The Company 1s a public imited company which is tisted on the AIM London Stock Exchange and 1$ incorporated and
domicied in the UK The address of s registered office 15 Pannell House, Park Street, Guildford, Sumrey, GU1 4HN

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The pnnaipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consohdated financial statemenis are set out
below These policies have been applied consistently throughout the year except where otherwise indicated

Basis of preparation

The conschdated financial statements of 1Spatial pic have been prepared in accordance with Internatianal Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union (IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC (Intermational
Fmancial Reporting interpretations Committee)} interpretations and the Companies Acl 2006 applicable 1o companies
reportng under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost
convention

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with IFRS requires the use of cerfain cntical accounting
estimates It also requires management to exercise 1ts judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
polices The areas ivolving a higher degree of judgement and complexity, or areas where assumphtons and
estimates are significant to the consohdated financial statements are disclosed in note 4

Going Concern

The Dwectors have formed a judgement that, at the time of approving these financal statements there 1s a
raasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources and hkely income to contrnue in aperational existence
for the foreseeable future and therefore adopt the going concern bas:s for the financial statements

Audit Exemption

Subsidiary undertakings Avisen Group Limited, Strategy GPS Limited, Socium Limited and 1Spatial Technologies
Limited have claimed audit exemptron under Companies Act 2008 Section 479A with respect to the year ended 31
January 2013 The group parent company, 1Spatal pic, has given a statement of guarantee under Companies Act
2006 Seclion 479C, whereby 1Spatial plc will guarantee all outstanding habilihes to which the respective subsidiary
companies are subject as at 31 January 2013

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those of the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2012, with the exception of the following standards, amendments
1o and inferpretations of published standards adopted dunng the year

(1) New standards, amendments and interpretations affecting amounts reported in the financial statements
There have been only minor improvements to existing Intemational Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations
that are effective for the first tme for the financial year beginruing on or after 1 February 2012 which have been
adopted by the Group with no impact on its consolidated results or financial position as they impact certamn

presentational and disclosure matters

(1} New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted with no significant mpact upon amounts
raported 'n the financial statements
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The following amendments to existng standards and new interpretations became effective in the current penod, but
have no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements

* IFRS 1, 'First Time Adoption’ exemption for entities ceasing to suffer from severe hypennfiation

* IFRS 7, ‘Financial Instruments Disclosures’ enhanced disclasures for the transfer of assets

{11} New standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued but not effective for the financial year beginmng
1 February 2012 and not adopted early

« 1AS 19, 'Employee benefits', effective on or after 1 January 2013 The impaci on the Group will be to elimmate
the corndor approach and recognse all actuanal gains and losses in OCl as they occur, to immediately
recognise all past service costs, and {o replace interest cost and expected return on plan assetls with a net
interest amount that 1s calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit hability (asset)

*+ IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, effective on or after 1 January 2015, addresses the classification, measurement
and recognrition of financial assets and financial tiabiities It reptaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the
classification and measurement of financial nstrurents IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified wlo two
measurement calegones those measured as al far value and those measured at amortised cost The
determinalion 15 made at mitial recognition The classificabon depends on the ently's business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument For financial
liabiibes, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements The main change 1s that. in cases where the farr
value option 15 taken for financial iabilities, the pant of a far value change due to an entity's own crednt nsk is
recorded n other comprehensive income ralher than the statement of comprehensive income, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch

+ IFRS 10, 'Consolidated financial statements’, effective on or after 1 January 2013, builds on existing principles by
identfying the concept of contro! as the determining factor in whether an entity should be included within the
consoldated financial statements of the parent company The standard provides addtional guidance i the
determuning the control Amendments for investing entilies are effective on or after 1 January 2014

= IFRS 11 'Jont Arangement’, effective on or after 1 January 2013, prowides for a more realistic reflection of joint
arrangements by focusing on the nghts and obligations of the amrangement, rather than its legal form
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures s not permitted

* IFRS 12, 'Disclosures of interests in other entiies’, effective on or after 1 January 2013, includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interesis in other entihies, inctuding joint arrangements, associates, special purpose
vehicles and other off balance sheet vehicles Amendments for 1avesting entiies are effectwe on or after 1
January 2014

* IFRS 13, 'Far value measurement’, effectve on or after 1 January 2013, ams to mprove consistency and
reduce complexity by providing a precise definrtion of fair value, guidance on s apphcation and a single source
of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs

+ IAS 27 (revised 2011) 'Separate financial statements’, effective on or after 1 January 2014

+ 1AS 28 {rewised 2011) ‘Associates and joint ventures’, effective on or afier 1 January 2014

+ Amendment to IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’, on offsetting financial assets and financial habilities,
effective on or after 1 January 2013 and transitional amendments effective on or after 1 January 2015

= Amendment t0 IAS 32, ‘Firancial instruments Presentation’, on offsetting financial assets and financial habtlities,
effective on or after 1 January 2014

+  Amendment to IFRS 1,'First time adoption’, an government loans, effectrve on or after 1 January 2013
*  Annualmprovements 2009 - 2011 {eflective accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013) - includes

changes to + IFRS 1, ‘First bme adoption’ - IAS 1, 'Financial statement presentation’ « IAS 16, ‘Property plant
and equipment’ « |AS 32, ‘Financial instruments, Presentation’ - IAS 34, ‘Intenm financial reporting’
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Basis of consolidation

The results and net assets of all subsidiary undertakings acquired are inctuded in the statement of comprehensive
income and consohdated statement of financial position using the purchase method of accounting from the effective
date at which control 1s obtained by the Group Subsidiary undertakings cease to be consolidated from the date at
which the Group no longer retains control, or from the date that the subsidiary 1s classified within disposal groups held
for sate Control compnises the power to govemn the financial and operating policies of the mvestee so as to obtain
benefits from ther actwvities, and 1s achieved through direct or mdirect ownership of voting nghts or by way of
contractuat agreement  All inter-company balances and transactions are elymunated tn full Accounting policies of
subsidianes are changed where necessary to ensure consistent poltcies across the Group

Business combmnations

Acquisitions of subsidianes and businesses are accounted for using the acquistion method The cost of an
acquisition 1s measured as the far value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and habilties incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange Where there 15 deferred consweration payable in cash, the amount 1s discounted
to ts present value The present value of deferred cash consideration s included within the Group's financiat
statements as a hability identffiable assets acquired and habiites and contingent labitities assumed \n a business
combination are measured initially at therr far values at the acquisition date The excess of the cost of acquisiion
over tha farr value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill If the cost of
acquisttion 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the statement of comprehensive income Acquisition related costs are expensed as incumred

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported In a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the board of directors which makes the
Group's strategic decisions

Foreign currency transtation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems mncluded n the financial stalements of each of the Group's entries are measured using the cumrency of the
pnmary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the funchionat currency’) The consolidated financiat
statements are presented in UK Stering which s the Group and Company's functional and presentation currency

(b) Transactrons and balances

Forergn currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevading at the
dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary asseis and liabilities denominated in foraign cumencies

are recognised in the statement of comprehensive tncome in the penod in which they anse

Foreign exchange gains and losses that refate to borrowings and cash and cash equivakents are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within financial tncome or cost
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{c) Group Companies

The results and financial position of all the Group enbhies (none of which has the cumency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation cumency are transkated into the presentation
currency as follows

)} assets and liabitties for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closmg rate
at the date of that balance sheet,
) income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive iIncome are translated at average exchange

rates (unless this average 15 nol a reasonhable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevaidmng on the fransaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions), and

) all resuting exchange differences are recogmised as a separate camponent of equity

(d) Goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill and intangibles adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assels and
labilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses the farr value of the consideration receved or recevable for the sale of services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activibes Revenue 18 recogised when the nsks and rewards of ownership have passed to the
customer and 15 shown net of Value Added Tax, rebates, discounts and after ekminating sales within the Group
Where a sale includes multiple elements, where the far value of each element can be relably valued, the elements
are separated Where this 1s not possible the revenue s spread over the penod relating to the element with the
longest recognitron penod

The fair value of the revenue for each element of the arangement is then accounted for In accordance with the
pohcies descnbed below

Software Licence Revenue
Revenue 15 recognised when the software s delivered and accepted by the customer Software revenue is
recagnised depending on licensing terms

1 For a icence in perpetuity, where there are no further obligations and there 1s determination that collection of
fee 15 reasonably assured, the revenue I1s recognised at the time the hcence s delivered and

2 For a licence that has a fixed term, where there are further obligations the revenue 15 recogmised over the term
of the hicence

Support and Maintenance
Where the support and maintenance s sold for a fixed term and there 1s a continuing performance obligation, then
the revenue 1s defermed and recogmsed over the term of the agreement on a straight line basis

Where fees for support and maintenance are bundled with the license fee, they are unbundled using the Groups
objective evidence of the farr value of the elements represented by the Groups customary pncing for each element tn
separate transactions

Professional Services
Revenue 15 recogrised as the work 15 camed out and the Group has the contractual nght to recerve the consideration

Software Davelopment Services
Revenue 13 recognised upon stage of completion of the software project The percentage of completion of the project
15 arnved at by a considered objective review as to the work that has been carred out, agamst thal which is yet to be

completed, to allow the project to be delivered to the customer These reviews are carmed out throughout the project

intgrest mcome
Interest Income 1s recognised on an accruals basis
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Deferred costs and deferred revenues

To the extent that the cosl and revenue recognition differs from the centractual billing terms, costs are included I
deferred costs or accruals and revenue 1s included i accrued income or deferred iIncome

Pre contract costs

Costs which relate directly to a contract and which are incurred once the award of the contract 1s probable, but pnor
to its award, are capitalised and wniten off over the penod of the contract to match the expected profit profile

Strategic, integration and other one off items

The Group has certain strategic, integration and other one off tems e g acquisiion costs, compromise agreements
and redundancy payments Management has disclosed these separately to enable a greater understanding of the
underlying profitamnlty/(loss) of the trading business so that the underying run rate of the busmnesses can he
established and compared on a ke for ke basis each year

The policy of the Group ts to separately disclose the following

- Strategic costs e g costs of due diligence on acquisitons which cannot be capitahsed under IFRS 3
(revised)} and costs of other strategic tems such as aborted due dligence costs

- Integration costs, such as duphcated costs, or redundancy and compromise payment costs

- One off items that will affect the underiying profitability of the business

Adjusted profit 1s the profit pnor to the charge of strategic integration and other one off items
Current and deferred income tax

The tax charge for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax i1s recognised in the statement of comprehensve
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recogmised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity In
this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively

Current tax

Current tax assets and llabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authonties, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consobdated statement of comprehensive income because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and ilems that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 1s racognised on temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and Labifies n the
financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the compuiation of taxable profit Deferred tax
habiities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences Deferred lax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that i 15 probable that taxable profits will be avalable against
which those deductible temparary differences can be utilised

A deferred tax habidity 18 provided on intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination This resulls in an
increase in sesidual goodwill by the same amount This liability has been recogmised in accordance with IAS12 This
hability s only payable if the intangible asset ts sold separately and this 1s not expected to happen

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected o apply in the penod in which the
hability 1s settled or the asset reahsed, based on tax rates and laws thal have been enacled or substantially enacted
by the end of the financial year The measurement of deferred tax labilites and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the financal year, to recover or settle
that carrying amount of is assets and liabiihes

29




1Spatial ptc

Intangible assets
{a) Goodwll

Goodwill ansing 1n a business combination 15 recognised as an asset at the date that control 1s acquired
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisiicn over the farr value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assefs of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s 1dentifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the excess 1s recogrused immediately in profit and loss as a bargain purchase gain  Goodwill 15
tested annually for impairment and camed at cost less accumulated imparment losses  Any impawment 15
charged to the statement of comprehensive income and 1s not reversed Gans and losses on the disposal of
an entity clude the cammying amount of goodwill relating to the entty sold Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-
generating units ("CGU’s") for the purpose of impairment testing  The aflocation 1s made to those CGLU's that
are expected 10 benefit from the business comination in which the goodwill arose, identified according to
operating segment

{b) Other intangible assets
Other imangible assets are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and impaiment losses

An intangible asset acquired as part of a business combination 1S recogmsed outside goodwill If the asset 15
separable or anses from contractual or other legal nghts and s far value can be measured rehably

Expendilure on intemally developed intangible assetls, excluding development costs, s taken to the statement
of comprehensive income n the year 1 which it 1s incurred Development expenditure s recognised as an
intangible asset only after its reliable measurement, technical feasibility and commerctal viabiity can be
demonstraled The types of costs capitalised include employee costs and subcontractor costs directly
associated with development activity

The amount intially recognised for internally-generated mtangible assets 1s the sum of the expendiure
tncurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition critena histed above Where no
inlernally-generated inlangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure 15 recogrised n the
statement of comprehensive income in the penod i which It s INcurred

Subsequent to inhal recogmtion, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
impairment losses [ntemally generated mtangibles assets consist of development costs

Intangible assets with a fintte hfe are amortised on a straight line basis over therr expected useful lives, as
follows

- Brands - 5 t015 years

- Customer contracts and related relationships - 5 to 10 years
- Software and intellectual property — 3 to 10 years

- Development costs — 3 years

Impairment and amortisation charges are mcluded within the admmstrative expenses line 1n the statement of
comprehensive income

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are nol subject to amorisation These are tested
annually for impairment Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenis or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An
impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds s recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value inuse For the purposes of
assessing impamment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately ientifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units) Mon-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impaiment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date
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Property, plant and equpment

Property, plant and equipment are slated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impatrment losses Cost includes
the ongmal purchase price of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bnnging the asset to #5 werking conditton for its
intended use

Depraciation 1s provided at rates cailculated te wnte off the cost or valuation of praperty, plant and equipment, less
ther estimated residual value over ther expected useful ives on the following basis

Leasehold property improvements - straight ine over penod of lease
Motor vehicles - 33% per annum - straight Ine
Fixtures, fittngs and equipment - 20% to 33% per annum — straight ne

The Drrectors annually review the residual vatue and estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment

The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 1s determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 1s recogmsed in income

Financial assets

The Group classifies s financial assets as loans and recewables The classificalion depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the classification of s financial assets at intial
recogmtton

Loans and receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market They are included m current assets, except for matunties greater than 12 months after the reporting
date These are classified as non-current assels The Group's financial assets compnse 'trade and other recewvables’
and cash and cash eguivalents in the statement of financial position

{a)

®)

Trade and other receivables

Trade recarvables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of
business If collection 15 expected in ane year or less they are classified as current asseis If not, they are
presented as non current assets

Trade receivables are recogmised mutially at far value and subsequenily measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment A prowision for imparment of trade receivables
15 established when there 1s objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the onginal terms of the recevables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the {rade receivable 1s impaired The amount of the provision 1s the difference
between the assel's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
onginal effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the provision for
imparrment of trade recewables, and the amount of the loss Is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income withtn administrative expenses When a trade recewvable 15 uncollectible, it 1s written
off agamnst the allowance account for trade recewvables Subsequent recovenes of amounis previously
wnitten off are credited against administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive income

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial posiicn compnse readily accessible cash at bank
and in hand Bank accounts held which have an onginal maturty of more than three months, or which are
subject to sigrificant restnctions over access, are not presented as cash and cash equivalents Such
amounts are shown separately as shorl term invesiments or other financial assets with appropnate
disclosure of the related terms *

For the purpose of the consohdated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equwalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts
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Financial labilities

The Group classifies its financial iabilites as trade and other payables and bomowings according to the substance of
the contractual arrangemenis entered into

(a) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers Accounts payable are classified as cument iabilties if payment
ts due within 12 manths or less If not, they are presented as non-current habiliies

Trade and other payables are recognised inthially at far value and subsequently measured at amorhsed cost
using the effective interest method

{b) Borrowings

All borrowings are imitally recogmised at farr value less dwectly attributable transaction costs  After inibal
recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured al amertised cost, any difference between the proceeds
and the redemption value 1s recognised in the slatement of comprehensive income over the penod of the
borrowings using the effective interest method Borrowings are classified as cument habilities unless the
Group has an unconditional nght to defer setilemeni of a hability for at least 12 months after the reporting
date

Share capital

Ordnary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new shares, share
options or share warrants are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Empioyee benafits
{a) Pensions

Pension coninbutions made into personal or company pension schemes, which are defined contnbution
schemes, are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as incurred, the group has no further
payment obligations once the contnbutions have been paid

{b) Share based payments

The Group operates a humber of equity-setiled, share-based payment compensaton ptans, under which the
enlity receives services from employees as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group The
fair value of the employee service recewved In exchange for the grant of the ophions 1s recognised as an
expense over the vesting penod The tolal amount to be expensed over the vestng penod 1s determmned by
reference to the far value of the optons granted, excluding the wmpact of any service and non-market
performance vesting condittons (for example, profilabiity and sales growth targets) Non-markel vesting
conditions are included 1 assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest At each
reporting date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest It
recognises the impact of the rewision to onginal estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensive income,
with a corresponding adjustment to equrty

Where options are exeraised, the Company 1ssues new shares The proceeds received net of any directly
atinbutable transaction costs are credited to share capral (nominal vajue) and share premium when the
options are exercised

Leases

Assets held under teases that result in group companies receving substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance leases and capitahsed as property, plani and equipment at the lower of cost and the
estimated present value of the undertying lease payments The interest element of the rental cbhgation 1s allocated to
the accounting penods to reflect a constant rate of interest on the outstanding obligabon The corresponding finance
lease obligation 18 included within payables These assels are depreciated over the tarm of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the asset, whichever 1s shorter
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Rentals under operating leases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income an a straight line basis over
the penod of the lease

3 Financial instruments
Financial nsk factors

The Group's activiies expose it to a vanety of financial nsks foreign currency nsk, market nsk (including cash flow
and farr value interest rate nsk), credit nsk and hquidity nsk

Risk management 1s camed out by the finance team under policies approved by the board of drectors The Board
provides principles for overall nsk management, as well as policies covenng specific areas, such as interest rate nsk,
crednt nsk, foreign exchange nsk and use of denvative financial instruments and non-denvatve financial mstrurments

{a) Foreign currency nsk

The Group operates intemnationally and 15 exposed to hmited foreign exchange nsk ansing from various
currency exposures Foreign exchange nsk anses when future commercial transactions or recogmsed assets
or habiities are denominated in a currency that 1s not the entity's functional currency

Dunng the year, the Group had operatng subsidianes i Australia, the Netherands and Ireland, whose
revenues and expenses are respectively denominated n Austrahan Dollars and Eures

The Sterling statement of financial position 1s exposed to potential foreign currency losses on translation of the
net assets of these subsidianes The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign cuirency denominated monetary
assets and monetary habilities at the end of the reporting year are as follows

Net {Liabilities)/Assets
At 31 January Al 31 January

2013 2012

CuU000 cuL'o00

Euros 663 1,905
Australian Dollars (697) (240)
US Dollars 192 146
Canadian Dollars - (17)
New Zealand Dollars - 14
Malaysian Ringgits 281 59
South Afnican Rands - J24
Norweigan Kroner 355 -
Turkish Lira 1 -

The followang table detatls the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% strengthening of the currency unit (CU) against
Sterling The sensitivity adjusts their translation at the year end

Austrahan Dollar currency

impact Euro currency impact
At 31 January At 31January At 31 January At 31 January
2013 2012 2013 2012
£000 £'000 £000 £000
(Loss)/profit (&) (36) 12 7
Net (habilhies)fassets (51) a7 63 33

The Board do not consider it appropnate 1o borrow 1 Austratian Dollars or Euros in order to hedge against this
translation nsk as they consider any hedging benefits would be cutweighed by the creation of an interest rate
nsk on the borrowings
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(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(c)

The Group's exposure o nsk for changes 1n interest rates related pnmanty to the Group's other borrowings
relating to a loan provided by the previous owners of 15patal Austraha Pty Interest s charged at a fixed rate
of 5% therefore its exposure to interest rate nsk 1S hrmited given the level of debt in place

At 31 January At 31 January

2013 2012

Financial Liabihties £000 £'000
Fuxed rate 49 102
49 102

There 1s no tnterest on trade and other payables at 31 January 2013

Sensilivily analys:s

Any changes in the base rale in the UK will not impact the borrowings

The Group does not consider the cash flow and far value nterest rate nsk to be sigmficant Should
substantial debt be put in place in the future the Board will consider whether it would be appropnate to hedge

the cash flow and interest rate nsk However, no such mstrument has been taken oul in the cumrent or prnor
year The Board will continue to keep this position under review

At 31 January At 31 January

2013 2012
Financial Assets £000 £'000
Cash at bank 3,216 2,734

At 31 January 2013, the Group had Sterling cash of £2 446,202 (2012 £1,735,000), Ausiralian cash of
AUSS$136,579 (2012 AUS$172,000), Euro cash of €766,014 (2012 €820,000) and US$10411 (2012
$11,000) Cash s placed upon deposit at the best market rates avallable should an excess above that required
for working capital be held

Other financial assets comprnise trade recevables and other receivables as detailed in note 12

Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s managed by the trading enlites Credit nsk anses from expasures o outstanding customer
receivables Credit checking 1s used however, if there 1$ no independent rating, management will assess the
credt qualty of the customer, taking into account its financial posiion, past expenence and other factors
Individual nsk mits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with imits set by the Board

Credit nsk alsc anses from cash and cash equivalenis with banks and financial insttutitons  For banks and
financial nstitutions, only iIndependently rated parties with a minimum rating of ‘A’ are eccepted
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(d)

{e)

The table below shows the ageing of customer recewvables at the reporting date (shown net of prowision of
impairment)

2013 2012

£'000 £000

Current 888 1,656
Up to 3 months overdue 441 685
3 to 6 months overdue i 57
6 to 12 months overdue - 176
> 12 months overdue . 9
1330 2,583

Refer to note 12 for further details
Liquidity nsk

Liquidity 1S managed so that sufficent funds are maintaned to support the ongoing stralegic and trading
actvrities of the Group

Management monitors rolting forecasts of the Group's expected cash flow The detaled forecasting 1s carmed
out at local! level in the operating companies of the Group This I1s combined into a group cash flow forecast

The table below analyses the Group's financial labilittes into relevant matunty groupings based on the
remaming penod at the balance sheet to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances due within 12 months equal therr carrying balances as the
impaci of discounting 15 not significant

Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 years Between 2 and § years

At 31 January 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000
Borrowings 49 - -
Trade and other payables* 3,625 - -

3674 - -

Less than 1 year Between 1 and 2 years Between 2 and 5 years

At 31 January 2012 £'000 £000 £'000
Borrowings 51 51 -
Trade and other payables® 4,228 - -

4,279 51 -

*Excludes deferred income as not a financial hability as there 1s no obligation to pay cash
Capital nsk

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's abilty to continue as a going
concemn n order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to mamniain an
aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital

in order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of diwdends paid to
shareholders and relurn of capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets/husinesses to reduce debt

The Group monitors captal on the basis of the geanng ratio Tiws rato s calculated as net funds/(debt)
dvided by total capital Net fundsi/(debt) 1s calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current
borrowings’ as shown in the consohdated statemen! of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents
Total capital 1s calculated as ‘equty’ as shown m the consotidated statement of financial position sheet plus
net debt

Dunng 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2012, was to maintan the geanng ratio below
50%
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2013 2012

£'000 E'000
Capital nsk management
Total borrowings 49 102
Less cash and cash equivalents (3.216) (2,734)
Net (funds)/debt (3,167) (2,632)
Total equity 6,824 11,118
Total capital 3,657 8,486

Gearing ratio Not applicable

There 1s no geanng at 31 January 2013 or 31 January 2012 as the Company had more cash and cash
equivalents than borrowings at this date

(N Market nsk

The main market nsk that the Group 1s exposed 10 1s changes in the pnce of third party software support and
mamntenance that it uses in the solutions it supplies to customers VWhen quoting for business the Group always
obtans fixed price quotations from suppliers before submitting a pnce to the customer

4 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

Estmates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumslances

The Group makes estimates and judgemenis conceming the future The resulting accounting estimates will, by
defintion, seldom equal the related actual resulls The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjusiment to the camying amounts of assets and habiliies within the next financial year are
discussed below

Revenue recognition

The contractual arrangements of sales are often complex with multiple elements e g software and mantenance
Management has to make appropnate judgements and estimates in relation to the far value of each of these
elements in accordance with the guidance set outin IAS 18

Where a project extends over a time period, management make a judgement on the fair value of the work completed
in order to be able to recognise revenue i relation to the project in the correct penods  An objective review of each
project 18 undertaken on an indvidual basis and management's best judgement 15 used as the basis of completion of
the project, thereby defining levels of revenue recognised

Allocation of farr value — when a bundled service 1s sold the Group uses cntical judgement to unbundle the service
and recognise elements of revenue separately as shown in the revenue recognition pohicy in note 2

Pre contract cosls

Management have to make a judgement over whether the award of a contract 1s probabile or not in order to assess
whether pre contract costs are recognised as an asset pnor to the award of a contract Once recognised pre contract
costs are released in ine with management's best judgement of percentage of completion of the contract

impamrment of goodwil

The Group tests annually whether goodwi!! has suffered any impairment, in accordance wih the accounting policy
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-nuse Management have
elso had lo make significant estimates and judgements when putting together the budgets and projections which are
used in the value in use calculations These judgements are mamly in relabon to projected revenues and margins
Refer to note 10 for further detads of the impairment charge tn the year

valuation of intangtble assels

Management have to make a number of estimates and judgements when valuing intangitle assets For example,
expected growth rates, atintion rates, useful economic lives and royalty rates These estimates and judgements have
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to be updated when intangibles are reviewed for impairment, which was the case in the cument year Refer to note 10
for further detatls

5(a) Segmental information

Management has determined the operaling segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board that are used to
make strategic decisions

The United Kingdom 1s the home country of the Group For management purposes during the year, the Group was
grganised mto four operating dwvistens — Head Office, Avisen, Storage Fuston and 1Spatia) These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports s segmental tnformation  Where applicable, the reportable operating segments
derve therr revenue pnmarnly from the sale of consultancy and software The head office cosls represents costs
associated with 1Spatial ple including costs of the board of Directors and other costs which are not specific to any of
the other segments Examples of cost include the group accounting function and marketing [t also includes costs
associated with being an AIM listed company and other statutory costs including audt fees

The Board assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a measure of adjusted EBITDA and
adjusted EBITA This measurement basis excludes the effects of strategic, integraton and other one off items from

the operating segments

The segment information provided to the Board for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 January 2013 1s as

follows
Sterage

Head Office Avisen Fusion 1Spatal Totzl
31 January 2013 £'000 £'0C0 £000 £'000 £'000
Continwng operations
Revenue - 1,995 357 9,687 12,079
Less intersegment sales - - - -
Total revenve from third parties - 1,995 157 9,687 12,079
Cost of sales - {1,517} - {5,456) (6,973)
Gross profit - 478 397 4,231 5,106
Other operating income 13 5 - 3 21
Total administrative expenses {2,156) {1,364) [2,750) (3,642) (9,912)
Adjusted ERITDA (1,956) 29 8 1,386 (533)
Less depreciation {21) (11) {46) {73) (152)
Adjusted EBITA (1.977) 18 {38) 1,312 (685)
Less amortsation and impairment of intangible assets - (693) [2,409) (376) {3,478)
Less strategic, integration and other one-off tems {166) {206) 94 (344) (622)
Total operating {loss)/profit (2,143) {881) {2,353) 592 {4,785)
Finance income 12 - - 2 14
Finance cost {2} {2) (1) {a) (S)
Net finance income/{cost) 10 {2) {1) {2) 5
{Loss)/prafit before tax {2,133) {BB3) (2,354) 590 (4,780)
Tax - 2 266 119 87
{Loss)/profit for the year from contnnng operations {2,133) (881) {2,088) 709 {4,393]
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Storage

Head Office Avisen Fusion 1Spatial Total
31 January 2013 £'000 £000 £000 E'000 £000
Segment assets 1325 1,459 42 10,188 13,314
Segment Lah:ditres (B63) {528) {709) {4,390) (6,490)
Segment net assets/{habiiities) 462 931 {267} 5,798 5,824

Storage

Head Office Avisen Fusion 1Spatial Total
31 lanuary 2012 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £°000
Continuing oparations
Revenue - 3,305 390 1,533 5,228
Less intersegment sales - - - - -
Total revenue from third partles - 3,305 390 1533 5,228
Cost of sales - {2,595) - {778) (3,373}
Gross profit - 710 390 755 1,855
Total administrative expenses {1,661) {410) (847) (536} (3,454)
Adjusted ERITDA {1,134) 05 {13) 330 (512)
Less depreciation {11) n (13) {11} (42)
Adjusted EBITA {1,145) 298 (26} 319 {S54)
Less amortisation and smpairment of intangible assets - 8) {431} (66) {S05)
Less strategec, ntegration and other one-off items {516) 10 - {34) {540}
Total aperating {loss)/profit {1,661) 300 {457} 219 (1,599)
Finance income 17 B - 1 26
Finance cost {5) {3) {1} {11) {20)
Net finance mcome/(cost) 12 5 {1} {10) 6
[Loss)/profit before tax (1,649) 305 {458) 209 {1.593)
Tax credit, . a3 129 1 173
[Loss}/profit for the year from continuing aperations (1,649) 348 {329) 210 (1,420)
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South
Inca Africa Total
31 Janvary 2012 £000 £'00D £'000
Drscontinued operations
Revenue 1,145 - 1,145
Less intersegment sales - -
Total revenue from third parties 1,145 - 1,145
Cost of sales {722) - (722)
Gross profit 423 - 423
Total administrative expenses {415) {45) (460}
Adjusted EBITDA 95 - 95
Less depreciation {19} - {19)
Adjusted EBITA 76 - 76
Less amorusation and impairment of intangible assets {68) - (638)
Less strategic, integration and other one-off items - {45) {45)
Yotal operating profit/iloss), ] {45) (3N
Finance income - - -
Finance cost (17) - (17)
Net finance cost {17} - (17)
Loss before tax (9) {45) (54)
Tax credit - . -
Loss for the year from dacontinued operations {9) {45) {54)
Storage
Head Office Avisen Fusion 1Spatal Total
31 January 2012 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Segment assets 2,352 4,208 2,320 9,485 18,365
Segment llabities {2,132} (587) (343) {4,185) (7,247)
Segment net assats/{hab:lities) 220 3,621 1,977 5,300 11,118

Sales between segments are camed out at amm's length  The revenue from external partes reported to the Board 1s
measured In a manner consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive income

The amounts provided to the Board in the year ended 31 January 2013 wath respect to total assets and tota! labdities
are measured 1n @ manner consistent with that of the financial statements Assets are allocated based cn the
operatons of the segment and the physical location of the asset Liabilities are alflocated based on the operations of
the segment

The Group's operations are located in the UK, Ireland, Austratia and Europe The following table provides an
analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market

2013 2012

Continuing operations £'000 £°000
United Kingdom 6,651 3.97%
Europe 2,310 1,065
Rest of World 3,118 192
12,070 5,228

Discontinued operations

United Kingdom - 1,145
Eurcpe - -
Rest of World - -
- 1,145
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The following table represents major customers where revenues eamed exceed 10% of the Group's revenue

2013 2012
Operating
segment £'000 £'000
Customer 1 Avisen 1,953 2,767
6(a) Operating loss
Continuing Continuing Discontinued Total
operations  operations operations 2012
2013 2012 2012
Continuing operations £'000 £00¢ £'000 £'000
Loss for the year 1s stated after
charging
Wages and salanes 6,213 2.346 211 2.557
Social secunty costs 569 265 24 289
Pension costs 322 121 3 124
Staff costs including
executive directors and 7,104 2,732 238 2970
compromise agreements
Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment
- owned assets 152 42 19 61
Amortisation of mtangible
assets 903 480 68 548
Imparment of intangible
assets 2513 25 - 25
Net foreign exchange
losses/{(gains) 139 121 - 121
Operating lease payments 346 150 - 150
Auditors remuneration
Fees payable to the
Company’s auditor for the
audit of the parent company 24 24 - 24
and consolidated finanaial
statements
Fees payable to the
Company’s auditor and s
associates for other services
- The audt of the Company's
subsidianes pursuant 1o 106 52 - 52
legislation
- Other services pursuant to : _ ) }
legislation
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6(b) Average monthly number of personnel employed (including executive directors)

Continuing Continuing Discontinued  Total
operation operation operations 2012
2013 2012 2012
Directors 3 3 - 3
Consultanis 11 9 3 12
Sales and marketing 21 4 2 6
Administration 13 4 1 5
Suppon 6 2 1 3
Software developers a7 14 - 14
101 36 7 43
6{c) Directors emoluments
Details of mdividual executive directors’ remuneration for the year are as follows
2013 2012
£'000 £°000
Total executive directars emoluments 1,024 914

The individual emoluments which correspond to the Directors in the current year are as follows, with the comparative

shown for those directors only

Emoluments Compens- Pension Total Emoluments Compens- Pensicn  Total
ation forloss  contnbu 2013 ation fer loss  contnbu 2012
of office -tions of office -tions

£'000 £'000 £000  £000 £000 £000  £000 £000

M Hanke* 453 . 70 533 412 - - a2

C Milverton* 194 . 3 197 181 - 48 209

J Hill {note a) . R . R 242 . - 242

N Snape (note b} 53 98 49 200 19 . 5 24
M Sanderson* 127 - 12 139 17 - 10 27

837 98 134 1,069 851 . 63 914

*Current executive director team
Note a - Resigned on 28 November 2011

Note b ~ Resigned on 14 June 2012

No directors as at 31 January 2013 and 2012 were accruing benefits under a money purchase scheme

The emoluments of the highes! paid director were as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Satanes and other short term benefils 533 412

No director exercised any share options in 2013 or 2012
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Details of mdnvidual non-executive directors’ fees for the year are as follows

2013 Fees 2012 Fees

£'000

M Yeoman 88
M Battles 38
S Benry 4
130

The non-executive directors invoice for their services, which are paid to their personal consultancy businesses

There are no other personnel that meet the definiion of key management personnel under IAS 24, other than the

directors

7 Strategic, infegration and other one off items

In accordance with the Group's policy for strategic, integration and other one off tems, the following charges were

included in this category for the year

2013 2012
Continuing operations £'000 £'000
Strategic costs 14 30
Costs of duplication and integration 608 239
Total - continuing operations 622 540
Discontinued operations
Strategic cosis - 45
Total - discontinued operations - 45
Total 622 585

The strategic costs in 2012 relate to the acquisition costs of the 1Spatial Business The costs of duphication and
integration mainly relate to redundancy and compromise costs In relation to staff integration and reorganisation of the

1Spatal Business following the acquisition
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8 Finance income and costs

Continuing Continung Discontnued  Total
operations  operatons operations 2012
2013 2012 2012 | |
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 P
Finance income !
Bank interest recevable 14 26 - 26
14 26 - 28
Finance costs
Interest expense 1
- bank borrowings {(inciuding . |
overdrafts) (3) (10) (10) |
- hire purchase and finance ) @ - @ 1
leases :
- factonng and bank charges (6) {8) (17) (25 |
(9 {20} a7 (37 ,
Net finance income/{cost) 5 8 (17) (1) !
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9 Income tax credit

2013 2012

£°000 £000
Continumng operations
Current tax (42) -
Adjustment in respect of pror years (58) (150)
Deferred tax {(note 16) -
Reversal m tming differences {(190) 8)
Change n rates of taxation (87 {(17)
Current tax charge/(credit) {387} {(173)
Discontinued operations
Current tax -
Deferred tax (note 16) -
Total tax charge/(credit) (387) {173)

The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse usmg the weighted

average 1ax rate apphcable to the consolidated entities as foliows

2013 2012

£°000¢ £'000
Loss before tax — continuing operations (4.780) (1,593)
(Loss)/profit before tax ~ discontinued operations 410

{4,780} {1,183)

Loss before tax multiphed by the average effective rate of tax in the
UK of 24 33% (2012 26 33%) (1,183) (311)
Effect of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 914 1,325
Income not taxable 3) {1,433)
Captal allowances in excess of depreciation 14 4
Tax {osses not ullised 266 546
Retef for gain on sale - {122)
Other timing differences (260) (15)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous penods {58) {150)
Impaci! of change tn tax rate {97) {17)

{387) (173)

The standard rate of corporation 1ax in the UK changed from 26% to 24% with eflect from 1 Apnl 2012 Accordingly, the
company's profits for this accounting penod are taxed at an effective rate of 24 33% Legislation to reduce the main rate of
corporation tax from 24% to 23% from 1 Apn# 2013 was included in the Finance Act 2012 and substantively enacted on 3

July 2012 and so the refevant deferred tax balances have been re-measured at 23% for the cument year end

Further reduchons to the main rate were announced In the Autumn Statement 2012 (reducing the rate to 21% from 1 Apnil
2014) and Budget 2013 (reducing the rate to 20% from 1 Apnl 2015) Neither change had been substantively enacted at

the reporting date, therefore they are not mcluded m these financial statements
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10 intangible assets including goodwill

Customers
and
related Development  Website
Goodwill Brands  contracts Software costs costs Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Cost .
At 1 February 2012 10,102 232 899 3,149 1,007 30 15,419
Additions - - - - 671 - 671
Disposals (62) - - - - - (62)
At 31 January 2013 10,040 232 859 3.149 4,678 30 16,028
Accumulated
impairment and
amortisation
Al 1 February 2012 4,500 4 21 594 535 30 5,684
impairment 1,855 - - 75 583 - 2,513
Amorlisation - 23 129 529 222 - 903
At 31 January 2013 6,355 27 150 1,198 1,340 30 9,100
Net book amount at
31 January 2013 3,685 205 749 1,951 338 - 6,928
Customers
and
related Development  Website
Goodwill Brands contracts Software costs costs Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2011 12,849 252 1,852 944 595 - 16,492
Additions 100 - - M 412 30 576
Acquisition of
subsidiary 3,346 232 899 217 - - 6,648
Disposals (6,193) {252) {1,852) - - - (8,297}
At 31 January 2012 10,102 232 899 3,149 1,007 30 15,419
Accumulated
imparment and
amortisation
At 1 February 2011 4,500 53 545 243 438 - 5779
Impawment - - - - - 25 25
Amortisation - 10 85 5 a7 5 548
Disposals - (59) (609) - - - (668)
At 31 January 2012 4500 4 21 594 535 30 5684
Net bock amount at
31 January 2012 5602 228 878 2,555 472 - 9,735
Net book amount at
1 February 2011 8,349 199 1,307 701 157 - 10,713

The net book amount of development costs includes £338,000 (2012 £472,000) internally generated capitalised
software development costs that meet the defimtion of an intangible asset

The amortisation charge of £903,600 (2012 £548,000) and the impairment charge of £2,513,000 (2011 £25,000) are
included in the administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive ncome
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Impairment tests for goodwill and intangibles

Goodwill 1s allocated to the Group's cash-generating units (CGUs) identfied The basis of the allocation s made to
those CGU's that are expected to benefit from the business combinabion in which the goodwill arose, dentified
according to operating segment A summary of the goodwill allocation 1s presented below

2013 l ( 2012
Storage Storage
Avisen  1Spatal Fusion Total Avisen 1Spabal Fusion  Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Goodwill
Opening NBA 1,024 3,346 1,232 5,602 1,024 3,346 1,232 5,602
Imparment/
Disposal (685) - {1,232)  (1.817) - - -
Closing NBA 339 3,346 - 3.6B5 1,024 3,346 1,232 5,602

Basis for calculation of recoverable amount

The Group has prepared, and formally approved, a two year plan for each CGU The detaled plan put together by
the management team and the Board makes judgements and assessments on revenue and gross profit expectations
This 18 from both contracted and pipeline revenue streams It also takes account of histonc success of winning new
work and in accordance with IAS 36 ‘Imparment of Assets’

The key assumptions used in the value m use calculations were the discount rate applied (17% for Avisen and
1Spatial, 20% for Storage Fusion) and the growth assumptions for each CGU For Avisen a revenue growth of 3%
has been forecas! while overheads are forecast to decrease by 88% in the year ended January 2014, no growth
thereafter has been forecast 1Spatial has forecast significant growth in sales and corresponding costs for the year
ended 31 January 2013 (42% and 34% respectively) with the year ended January 2015 increase being 10% and 15%
respectively Storage Fusion is forecast lo grow revenue by 7% with averheads increasing by 4% for the year ended
January 2014 and larger growths of 20% and 10% respectively for the following year For the year ended January
2016 EBITDA growths have been assumed of 0% (Awvisen) and 5% {1Spatial and Storage Fusion), thereafier the
EBITDA growth rates have been assumed to be 0% (Avisen) and 2% (1Spatial and Storage Fusion)

The rates used in the above assumptions are consistent with management's knowledge of the industry Growth in
revenues of 42% within the 1Spatial business Is anticipated as a result of management's strategy going forward

The assumptions noted above have been given in terms of revenue and overhead percentage growth For 2016 and
subsequent years, the assumplion has been provided m lerms of growth on the pror year EBIT margin

The growth rate for subsequent years of 2% does not exceed 1he long-term growth rate for the business in which the
CGU operates Discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific nsks refatng to the relevant segments

The forecasts, are most sensitive to changes n revenue and overhead assumptions A 5% decrease in revenue In
Awsen for 2014 would result in a full impairment of the remaining goodwill and intangibles

There would have to be a reduction in forecast revenue of 24% in the year ended 31 January 2014 and zero growth
on this figure In 2015 for the headroom to be removed on 1Spatial

As the goodwll and intangibles of Storage Fusion are now fully tmpaired there is no sensivity 1o changes m future
assumptions
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Leasehoid
property Fixtures, fithings

improvements  Motor vehicles and equipment Total
At 31 January 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2012 66 70 138 274
Additons - 67 164 23
Disposals (8) (70) - (78)
At 31 January 2013 58 67 302 427
Accumulated depreciaton and
Impairment
At 1 February 2012 4 7 19 30
Charge for year 20 18 114 152
Disposals {3) {18) - (21)
At 31 January 2013 21 7 133 161
Net book amount at
31 January 2013 37 60 169 266

Leasehold
property Fixtures, fittings

mprovements  Motor vehicles and equipment Total
At 31 January 2012 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2011 29 - 303 332
Additions ] 70 78 156
Disposals - - (83} {83}
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 21) 58 - 60 118
Disposal of subsidianes {29} - {220) (249)
At 31 January 2012 66 70 138 274
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 February 2011 15 - 150 165
Charge for year 5 7 49 61
Oisposals - - n (77)
Disposal of subsidianes (16) - {103) {119)
At 31 January 2012 4 7 19 30
Net book amount at
31 January 2012 62 63 119 244
Net book amount at
1 February 2011 14 - 153 167

Depreciation expense of £152,000 (2012 £61,000) has been charged n administrative expenses
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12 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012

Current £'000 £000
Trade recevables 1,354 2,693

Less Provision for impairment of trade recervables (24) {110)
1,330 2,583

Other recevables 863 2,294
Prepayments and accrued income 550 674
2,783 5,551

The farr value of the Group's irade receivables and other recevables I1s the same as ds book value stated above No

interest 1s charged on overdue receivables

At 31 January 2013, trade recewvables of £1,330,000 (2012 £2,583,000) were fully performing The Group has

provided fully for all recevables which are not considered recoverable

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potentizl customer's credit quality and defines credit

timis by customer

Other receivables include £mil (2012 £1,300,000) due n refation to the disposal of the Inca business which was

recewved in Apni 2012

At 31 January 2013, trade receivables of £442,000 (2012 £533,000) were past due but notimpaired The ageing
analysis of these customers (s set out below The balances rejate to customers where there 1$ no history of default

and management believe that the receivables balance will be paid

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Up to 3 maonths overdue 441 319
3 to 8 months overdue 1 57
6 to 12 months overdue . 148
> 12 months overdue - ]
442 533

As of 31 January 2013, trade receivables of £24,000 were impaired (2012 £110,000) and provided for The provision

relates to a3 number of small receivables

The ageing of these recesvables are as follows

2013 2012
£000 £'000
6 to 12 months overdue 110
> 12 months 24 -
24 110
Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade and recewvables are as follows

2013 2012
£'000 £000

At 1 February 110 140
Acquistions - 103
Movement {88} {133)
At 31 January 24 10
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The creatton and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in administrative expenses n the

statemnent of comprehensive income

The ather classes within trade and other recesvables do not contain impaired assets and the Group expect to recover
these in full There are no financial assels whose terms have been renggotiated that would otherwise be past due or

mpaired

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the reporing date 1s the carrying value of each class of recesvable noted

above The Group does not hold any collateral as secunty

13 Cash and cash equivalents

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 3.154 2,734
Financial assets — restricted access account 62 -
3,216 2,734
The farr value of the Group's cash and cash equivalents I1s the same as Its book value stated above
14 Trade and\;::ther payables
Current
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Trade payables 1,169 1,338
Other taxation and social secunty 466 578
Deferred consideration 133 134
Other payables 06 454
Accrued habilies 1,551 2,302
Deferred income 2,061 1,212
5,686 6,018

The Directors constder that the book value of trade payables, taxation, other payables, accrued habimites and

deferred income approximates to thew farr value at the reporting date

15 Borrowings

2013 2012
£'000 £000
Current
Other borrowings 49 51
49 %1
Non - current
Other borrowings - 51
. 51
Total borrowangs 43 102
2013 2013
The matunty of total borrowings Is as follows Other borrowings Total
£'000 £000
Within one year 49 49
49 49
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2012 2012
The matunty of total borrowings I1s as follows Other borrowings Total
E'000 £'000
Within gne year 51 51
Between one and two years 51 51
102 102

Other borrowings
Other borrowings relates to a loan provided by the previous owners of 15patial Ausiralia Pty Interest is charged at a
fixed rate of 5%

The bank overdraft facity available to the Group at 31 January 2013 was £500,000 (2012 £500,000), none of which
was drawn at year end

Faw values
The fair value of cuirent borrowings equals thewr carrying amount as the impact of discounting s not significant

Foreign currency
The carrying amounts of the Group's other borrewings in 2013 are denominated in Austrahan Dollars

16 Deferred tax
Deferred tax assets and lahies are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax assets

against current tax habiliies when the deferred tax relates to the same tax authonty The offset amounts are as
follows

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Deferred tax habihties
Deferred tax habilty to reverse within 12 months 115 220
Deferred tax habilty to reverse afier more than 12 months 633 815

748 1,035
Deferred tax habilities (net) 748 1,038
The movement on the deferred iIncome tax account 1s as follows

2013 2012

£'000 £'000
Beginning of year 1,035 232
Acquisitions — goodwill adjustment - 826
Statement of comprehensive mcome debit/(credit) (287) (23)
End of year 748 1,038

The movement in deferred tax habihties dunng the year, without takung into consideration the offsetting of balances s
as follows

Intangible assets

Deferred tax habilities E'000
At 1 February 2012 1,035
Credited 10 statement of comprehensive income {287)
At 31 January 2013 748
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The movement in deferred tax habitities dunng the previous year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of
balances s as follows

Intangible assets

Deferred tax habilities £'000
At 1 February 2011 232
Acquisiions - goodwill adjustment 826
Credited to statement of comprehensive income (23)
At 31 January 2012 1,035

Deferred income tax assets are recognised agamnst tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the realisaton of the
related tax benefit through future taxable benefits is probable The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of
£1,334,000 (2012 £1,176,000) in respect to losses amounting to £5,800,000 (2012 £4,702,000) that can be carmed
forward against future taxable income

17 Share capital and share premium

2013 2012
Allotted, called up and fully paid Number Number
Ordinary shares of 1p each 350,415,354 348,769,274
Deferred shares of 4p each 226,699,878 226,699,878
Ordinary shares of 1p Deferred shares of 4p
¢ach each
At 1 February 2012 348,769,274 226,699,878
Issue of shares 1,646,080 -
At 31 January 2013 350,415,354 226,699,878
Rights of shares
Ordinary shares

The ordinary shares all rank pan passu, have the nght to parbicipate in dvidends and other distnbutions made by
the company, and to recewe notice of, attend and vote at every general meeting of the company On hquidation,
ordinary shareholders are entitled to participate in the assets available for distnbution pro-rata to the amount
credited as paid up on such shares {excluding any premium)

Deferred Shares

The Deferred Shares do not carry voting nghts or a nght o receive a dwvidend The holders of Deferred Shares will
not have the right to receive notice of any genera! meeting of the Company, nor have any nght to attend, speak or
vote at any such meeting The Deferred Shares will also be incapable of transfer (other than to the Coempany) In
addition, holders of Deferred Shares will only be entitled to a payment on a return of capttal or on a winding up of
the Company after each of the holders of Ordinary shares has received a payment of £1,000,000 in respect of
each Ordinary Share Accordingly, the Deferred Shares will have no economic value No apphcation will be made
for the Deferred Shares to be admitted to trading on AlM nor to trading an any other stock or iInvestment exchange

Allotted, called Share Own

up and fully  premum shares

Number of shares paid shares account held

£000 £000 £'000

At 1 February 2011 226,699,878 11,335 6,455 {306)
Sub division 226,699,878 - - -
Issue of shares 122 069,396 1,221 - -
At 1 February 2012 575,469,152 12,556 6,455 (306)
Issue of shares 1,646,080 16 48 -

At 31 January 2013 577,115,232 12,572 6,503 (306)

51




1Spatial plc

As noted above, the Group 1ssued 1,646,080 shares as follows

Number of
Date Description shares
3 February 2012 Shares i1ssued to unconnected third parties i heu of services provided to 1,646,080
the company
For details of the Group's share option scheme, refer to note 19
18 Accumulated losses and other reserves
Share
based Reverse Currency
Accumulated payment Merger acquisition translation
losses reserve reserve reserve reserve
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000
At 1 February 2012 (10,257) 387 13,900 (11,584} (33)
Loss for the year (4,393) - - - -
Exchange differences ansing
on translation of net assets of
foreign operations - - - - 35
At 31 Janyary 2013 (14,650) 387 13,900 (11,5684) 2

Share based payments reserve

The share based payment reserve arses from the requirement to reflect the fair value of share options in existence at
the reporting date The share based payments reserve mncludes the far value adjustment in respect of warrants
1ssued (n previous years For further detail on share options and warmants see note 19 and 20 respectively

Merger reserve
The merger reserve arses on the difference between the nominal value of shares 1ssued and the premum payable to
acquire shares in another company

Reverse acquisition reserve

The reverse acquisition reserve 1s created in accordance with IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’ The reverse
acquisition reserve arose dunng the year ended 31 January 2010 due to the elimination of certain costs in respect of
the legal parent (1Spatial plc formerly Avisen Plc and Z Group Pic) and the legal subsidiary {(Avisen Group Limited)

Since the shareholders of Awvisen Group Lirmted became the majonty shareholders of the enlarged Group the
acquisition 1s accounted for as though there 1 a continuation of the legal subsidiary's financial statements  In reverse
acquistion accounting, the business combination's cost 1s deemed to have been incurred by the legal subsidiary

Currency translation reserve

The currency translation reserve anses on the iranslation of foreign entity balances where the functional currency 1s
different from the presentation currency
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19 Share based payments

The total charge for the year relating to share based payment plans was £Nil (2012 £Nul}

The EMI share option plan and Executive unapproved share option plan was introduced in 2010 Under the schemes
the Board of directors of 1Spatial Plc can grant options over the shares of the Company to directors and employees
Options are typically granted at a fixed prce equal to the market price of the shares under option at the date of grant,
atthough some aptions granted around the time of the acquisition were at a discount to the market pnce  The
contractual Ife of the oplion was 10 years Awards under the scheme are reserved for employees who are deemed
to be critical to the future success of the Company The vesting penod of the options lypically 1s for one year
Exercise of an option 1s subject to continuing employment The differences between the two schemes are relatively
minor, the main difference residing in the definstion of an eligible employee  Under the EMI scheme an employee
must be a full ime employee and a UK resident, whereas part tme and non resident employees can become
members of the unapproved option scheme Options under both schemes were valued using the Black-Scholes

aption pncing model

A reconciiation of options over the year to 31 January 2013 1$ shown below

2013 2012
Weighted average Weighted average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
Outstanding brought forward 4,017,500 B85p 6,250,001 9 5p
Forferted dunng the year {2,307,500) 8 5p (2,232,501) 12 5p
Outstandlng camed forward 1,710,000 BEp 4,017,500 B 5p
Exercisable as at 31 January 2013 1,710,000 4,017,500

The weighted average remaining contractual hfe of share options outstanding at the end of the year was 7 years
(2012 8 years) The exercise pnces of the outstanding options range between 5 5p and 12 5p

20 Share warrants
No warrants were 1ssued duning the year and no charge made

A reconcihiation of warrants over the year 1o 31 January 2013 1s shown below

2013 2013

Number Waeighted average

exercise price

Outstanding brought forward and carnied forward 2.252,.692 563p
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21 (Loss)/Eamings per ordinary share

Basic loss per share 1s caicutated by dividing the (loss)/profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue dunng the year

Year ended 31 January 2013

Year ended 31 January 2012

Continuing Discontinued Tota! Continuing Discontinued Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Loss attnbutable to equity
holders (4.393) - (4.393) (1.420) {54) (1.474)
Adjustments
Amortisation and
impairment of intangible 3,478 - 3,478 505 68 573
assets
Integration, strategic and
one off costs 622 - 622 540 45 585
Adjusted (loss)/profit (293) - {293) (375) 59 (318)
Year ended 31 January 2013 Year ended 31 January 2012
Continuing Discontinued Total Continung Discontinued Total
Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence Pence
Basic {loss) per (125) - {1 25) {857) {0 02) (0 59)
share
Dituted (loss) per
share {1 25) - (1 25) (057) (0 02) {0 59)
Adjusted basic
(loss}/eamings per (0 08) - (0 08) {015) 002 {(013)
share
Adjusted diluted
(loss)/ eamings per {0 08) - {0 08) ©15) 002 {013)
share
Number Number
000’'s 000’s
Basic weighted average number of ordinary shares 350,402 248,104
Impact of share options and warmrants - -
Diluted wetghted average number of ardinary shares 350,402 248,104

Where there 15 a loss per shate, the share options are not dilutive and hence the diluted earnings per share is the

same as the basic

22 Commitments

Operating lease commitments

The future aggregated mimimum tease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012

Land & Buidings Land & Builldings

£'000 £'000

No later than one year 306 375
Later than one year but no later than five years 984 1,108
Later than 5 vears 356 593
1,646 2,074

The Group leases offices under non-canceliable operating lease agreements which are renewable at the end of the

lease penod at markef rates
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23 Related-party transactions

(a) Key management compensation
The only key management personnel of the Group are the Directors Detads of the compensation of the key

management personnel are disclosed in note 6¢ to the financial statements

{b) Controlitng party

There 15 no one party which controls the Group

(c) Company and subsidary

Transactions between the Company and ils subsidianes, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed

(d} Transactions ansung from purchases of gervices
Transactions with related parties of £nil (2012 £225 000) dunng the year relate to services provided, under
normal commercral terms, by a company where cne of the 1Spatial pic non executive drectors 15 a member of

the board

in addition fees are paid to retated parties in respect of the non executive directors services, for

which details are disclosed in note ¢ to the financial statements The amounts owed (o these related paries
at the reporting date are shown below

2013 2012
£000 £'000
Retated party 1 2
Related party 2 3
Related party 3 -
5 11
24 Pnncipal subsidianes of the Group as at 31 January 2013
Subsidiary undertakings Description and Descnption and Country of Nature of
proportian of proportion of sncorporation business
share capital held share capital or registration
by 1Spatial pic  held by Group
Avisen Group Limited Ordinary 100% - England & Wales IT Consultancy
Avisen UK Lirmited - Ordinary 100% England & Wales IT Consultancy
Solution Minds Limited = Ordinary 100% England & Wales Domant
Avisen BV ~  Ordinary 100% Netherlands IT Consultancy
Solution Minds (UK} Limsted = Ordinary 100% England & Wales Oormant
Strategy GPS Limited Ordinary 100% - England & Wales  Halding company
Xplotte pic Ordinary 100% - England & Wales  Holding company
Xplote IHC Lemited - Ordinary 100% England & Wales  Holding company
FBHG Limnted - Ordmary 100% England & Wales  Holding company
(T Business
Service Assurance
Storage Fusion Limited - Ordinary 100% England & Wales Solutions
1Spatial Holdings Limited Ordinary 100% - England & Wales _ Holding company
1Spatial Group Limited - Ordwnary 100% England & Wales
1Spatial Technologies Limited - Ordinary 100% England & Wales tocation based
Socium Limited - Ordwnary 100% England & Wales developni::r:r::
1Spahal Australia Pty Limited - Ordinary 100% Austratia consultancy
Agan Spasuy Limited - Ordinary 100% lreland




1Spatial ple

25 Post Balance Sheet Events
Placing

On 12 June 2013 1Spatial completed the Placing of 300,000,000 new Ordinary Shares at the Placing Price of 6p per
share with certain institutional investors, raising approximately £17m of net proceeds for the Company and equating
to 46 1 per cent of the enlarged 1ssued share capital The new Ordinary Shares will rank equalty with the existing
Ordinary Shares in the Company Following the admisston, the company has 850,415,354 Ordinary Shares of 1p
each in 1ssue with each share carrying the nght to one vote

Acquisition

Foliowing the placing, on 14 June 2013, 1Spatial has completed the S0% acquisition of Star-Apic, the leading
European provider of Geographic Information Systems ("GIS") software and solutions far approximately £5 2m It

acquired approximately £1 5m of the net assets of the business that includes significant IPR, freehold property and
cash

The results of the Star-Apic group for the year ended 31 December 2012 were revenues of £6 8m, Adjusted* EBITDA
of £0 1m and Net profit of £0 1m
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iNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 1SPATIAL PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of 1Spatal plc for the year ended 31 January 2013 which
compnsa the Statement of Financial Pasition, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in thewr preparation i apphicable taw and
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFASs) as adopted by the European Union and as applied i accordance
with the Companies Act 2006

Respective rasponsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 17, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satsfied that they give a tue and fair view Qur
responsibility ts to audhit and express an opinton on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing
Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors

This repont, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose  We do not, In giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report s
shown or Into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our pnor consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audst nvolves chtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting polies are appropnate to the parent company's
circumstances and have been consistentty applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmatas made by the Directors, and the overall presentation of the financial statements In addition, we
read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements If we becoms aware of any apparent matenal misstatement or inconsistencies we
consider the implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the parent company financial statements
* give a true and fatr view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 January 2013 and of its cash flows for
the year then ended,
« have been properly prepared in accardance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and as apphed
in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, and
+ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opruon the information given in the Directors’ Repont for the financial year for which the parent company
fmancial statements are prepared is consistent with the parent company financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the lollowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 raquiras us to reporn to
you (f, tn our opimion

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or retums adequate for our audit

have not bean received from branches not wisited by us, or

+ the pamnt company hnancial statements are not in agreement with tha accounting records and retumns, or

s certain disclgsures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

¢ we have not recewved all the information and explanaticns we require for our audit

Other matter
Wa have reparted separately on the Group financial statements of 1Spatal plc for the year ended 31 January 2013

\*&eﬁ M
Miles Saunders (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Reading, 1 July 2013
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1Spatial plc
Statement of financial position
As at 31 January 2013

Registered number 5429800

Note 2013 2012
£000 £'000
Assgets
Non current-assets
Goodwill 3 - -
Cther intangible assets 3 7 8
Praperty plant and equipment 4 63 63
Investments 5 5,925 11,549
Total non-current assets 5,985 11,620
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 6 a55 1915
Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,102 544
Total current assets 2,057 2,459
Labithies
Current hahilies
Trade and other payables 8 4,364 11,431
4,364 11,431
Net assets 3,608 2,648
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 10 12,572 12,556
Share premwum account 10 6,503 6,455
Own shares held 10 (306) {306)
Share based payments reserve 1,026 1,026
Merger reserve 13,900 13,900
Accumulated losses {30,007 (30,983)
Total equity 3,688 2,648

The financial statements on pages 58 to 69 were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board on 1 July 2013 and

signed on its behalf by

A=W

C Milverton
Drrector
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1Spatial plc
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 January 2013

Share
Share Own Based
Share Premium shares Payments Merger Accumulated Total
£'000 Capital  Account held Reserve Reserve losses Equity
Balance at 1 February 2012 12,556 6,455 (306} 1,026 13,8900 {30,983) 2,648
Comprehensive Income
Profil for the year - - - - - 976 976
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 976 976
Transactions with owners
Shares 1ssued in the year (note 10) 16 48 - - - - 64
16 48 - - - - 64
Balance at 31 January 2013 12,572 6,503 (308) 1,026 13,900 (30,007) 3,688
Share
Share Own Based
Share Premum shares Payments Merger Accumulated Total
£'000 Capital  Account held  Regerve  Reserve losses  Equity
Balance at 1 February 2014 11,335 8,455 {306) 1,026 10,006 (15012) 13,504
Comprehensive iIncome
Loss for the year - - - - - (15971 (15971)
_Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive -
incomel/{expense) - - - - {(15,971) {15971)
Transactions with owners
Shares 1ssued in the year {note 10) 1,221 - - - - - 1,221
Premwm on 1ssuance of shares to
acquire subsidiary (note 10) - - - - 3894 - 3,804
1,221 - - - 3,804 - 5115
Balance at 31 January 2012 12,556 6,455 (306) 1,026 13,900 (30,983} 2648
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1Spatial plc
Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 January 2013

2013 2012
Notes £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activibes
Cash used in operations (a) {713} {5,303)
Interest received 12 17
Interest pad - (D)
Net cash generated from/{used in) operating activities (701) (5,291)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {72} (70)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 -
Disposal of subsidianes 1,300 6,000
Net cash used in investing activites 1,259 5830
Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary share caprtal - (106)
Net cash generated from financing actvities - (108)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 558 533
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 544 11
Gash and cash eguivalents at end of year 1,102 544
Notes to the statement of cash flows
{a) Cash (used in)/generated from operations
2013 2012
£000 £'000
Cantinuing operations
Profit/(Loss) before tax 976 (15,971)
Adjustments for
Dmwidends receved from subsidianes (6,499) -
Depreciation charge 20 7
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 21 -
Expense recognised In respect of shares 1ssued In
exchange for consulting services &4 -
{Increase) in trade and other recervables (340) {635)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (568) 1,037
Amortisation and impairments 5,625 10,271
Finance income (12) (17)
Finance costs - )
Cash (used in)/generated from continuing operaticns {713} (5,303)
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1Spatiat plc
Notes to the Company financial statements for the year ended 31 January 2013
1 Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The Company finanual statements have been prepared in accordance with Intermatonal Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union {IFRSs as adopted by the EU), IFRIC (Intemational Fmmancial
Reporting Interpretations Committes) interpretations and the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting
under IFRS The financial statements have been prepared on the going concem basis under the histoncal cost
convention in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

See note 2, Adophon of new and revised Internatonal Financial Reporing Standards (IFRSs), in the notes to the
consohdated financral statements for further information relating to the preparation of the financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of Sectton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not included a Statement of
Comprehensive Income in these separate financial statements The profit (2012 toss) attnbutable to members of the
parent company for the year ended 31 January 2013 15 £978,000 (2012 £15,971,000)

The pnnaipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalements are set out below These
policies have been applied consistently throughout the year except where otherwise indicated

Going Concern

The Directors have formed a judgement that, at the time of approving these financal statements there 15 a
reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources and hkely inceme to continue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future and therefore adopt the going concern basis for the financial statements

Significant accounting estimates and jJudgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on histonical expenence and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

The Company makes estimates and judgements concerning the future The resulling accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant nsk of
causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and labiihes within the next financial year are
discussed below

Carrying value of investments

The Company assesses investments for mpairment whenever avents or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of an investment may not be recoverable If any such indication of impatment exists, the Company
makes an estimate of the recoverable amount If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit 1s tess than the
value of the investment, the investment i1s considered to be i/mpared and 1s wntten down to its recoverable amount
Management have used significant estimates and judgements when putting together the budgets and projections
which are used in the value in use calculatons These judgements are mainly in relation to projected revenues and
margins Refer to note 5 for further nformation

Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based payment compensation plans, under which the entity
recewes services from employees as congideratian for equity instruments {options) of the Company The fair value of
the employee service receved In exchange for the grant of the options 15 recognised as an expense The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period 1s determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitabilty and
sales growth targets}) Non-market vesting condiions are ncluded in assumptions about the number of ophons that
are expected to vest

At each reporling date, the entity revises 1ts estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest |t

recognises the impact of the rewision 10 onginal estimates, if any, m the statemeni of comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment o equity
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Where options are exercised, the Company issues new shares The proceeds receved net of any directly
attnbutable transaction costs are credited 1o share capital (nominal value} and share premium when the options are
exercised

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the
Group 1s treated as a capital contrnbution The far value of employee services received, measured by reference fo
the grant date far value, 15 recognised over the vesting perod as an increase to mvestment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credr to equity

Interest iIncome
Interest income s recognised on an accruals basis

Goodwll

Goodwill ansing on acquisittons of trade and assets 1s recogrused at the date controlis acquired Goodwill represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the farr value of the nel identifiable assets acquired at the date of
acquisticn If, afier reassessment, the Company's interest in the fair value of the identffiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the excess 15 recognised immediately in profit and loss as a bargain purchase
gain  Goodwill s tested annually for impairment and camed at cost less accumulated imparment losses  Any
impairment 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income Gains and losses on the disposal of an entty
nclude the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entty sold Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment tesiing

For further information in respect of imparrment see the Group accounting policses on page 30 and note 10 to the
consohdated financial statements

Intangible assets

Identfiable intangible assetls acquired are nrhially recogmsed separalely from goodwill if the asset's fair value can be
measured reliably For intangible assets that have finite usefu! lives, amortisation is calculated so as to wnte off the
cost of an asset less its estimated residual value over its useful economug life as follows

Software - 3 years

Intangible assets are tested annually for mpairment and are camed at amortised cost less accumulated impairment
losses Any imparrment 1s charged to the statement of comprehensive income in the year it anses  See note 10 to
the consolidated financal statements for further information

Impairment of non-financial agssets

Assets that have an idefinite useful hfe, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation These are tested
annually for impairment Asseis that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever evenls or changes tn circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An
impaimment loss 1s recogmised for the amount by which the asset’s cammying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount 15 the higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and vaiue in use For the purposes of
assessing impaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately wentfiable cash flows
(cash-generating units) Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the mpawrment at each reporting date

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment tosses Cost includes
the onginal purchase pnce of the asset and the costs attnbutable to bringing the asset to its worung conditton for its

intended use

Depreciation s prownided at rates calculated to wrile off the cost or valuation of property, plant and equipment, less
thetr estimated residuat value over their expected useful ives on the following basis

Motor vehicles - 33% per annum — straight line
Computer equipment - 20% to 33% per annum - straight ine

The Directors annually review the residual value and estimated useful hves of the property, plant and equipment
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The gan or loss ansing on the disposal or retirement of an asset 15 determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and i1s recognised in Income

Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset invesiments in group undertakings are carned at cost less any provision for imparment The Company
assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in arcumstances indicate that the carrying value of an
investment may not be recoverable Animpairment loss 1s recogmsed immediately in the profitand loss account.

Trade and other receivables

Trade recewvables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ardinary course of business  If
collection 1s expected in one year or less they are classdied as current assets If not, they are presented as non
current assets

Trade recervables are recognised intially at far value and subsequently measured al amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impaiment A pravision for impairment of trade receivables i1s established
when there 1s objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the onginal
terms of the recewvables Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probabdity thal the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable
15 impared The amount of the prowision 15 the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash ftows, discounted at the onginai effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s
reduced through the provision for impairment of trade recewables, and the amount of the loss 15 recognised n the
statement of comprehensive income within administrative expenses When a trade recewnable 1s uncollectible, it 1s
wnitten off against the allowance account for trade recewvables Subsequent recovenes of amounts previousty written
off are credited against administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive ncome

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise readily accessible cash at bank and in
hand Bank accounts held which have an original maturity of more than three months, or which are subject to
significant restnctions over access, are not presented as cash and cash equivalents Such amounts are shown
separately as short term investmenis or other financial assets with appropnate disclosure of he related terms "

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash eguivalents as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts

Trade payables

Trade payables are obhgations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired i the ordinary course of
business from suppliers Accounts payable are classified as current habiities if payment 1s due within 12 months or
less If not, they are presented as non-current habihties

Trade payables are recognised initially at farr value and subsequently measured at amorbsed cost using the effective
interest method

Current tax

Current tax assets and habilihes are measured at the amount expected 1o be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorties, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the statement of comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax

Deferred tax 15 recogrnised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabitities n the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax
habihites are generally recogrused for ali taxable temporary differences Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temparary differences to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be avallable against
which those deductible temporary differences can be uthsed Such deferred tax assets and labiihes are not
recognised o the ternporary difference anses from goodwill or from the iniial recognition of other assets and habilities
In a transaction that affects nerther the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the penod m which the

hability s settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting perod The measurement of deferred tax habilties and assets reflects the tax
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consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting penod,
to recover ar settle that carrymg amount of its assets and liabilties

Foreign currency

Foreign curency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of manetary assets and habiies denonunated in foreign currencies
are recogrsed in the statement of comprehensive income in the penod in which they arise

Employee Pensions
The Company operales a stakeholder pension plan for which all employees are eligible  No employees have as yet
joined the scheme

Dividend income

Dwidend income from investments 15 recogrised when the shareholder's nght to recewe payment has been
established (provided that it 15 probable that the economic benefits will flow ta the Group and the amount of income
can be measured rehably)

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, share
options or share warrants are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

2 Financial nsk management

The Company's financial instruments compnse amounts due toffrom subsidiary underakings, cash and cash
eguivalents, other recewvables and trade and other payables The Company's approach to the financial nsks 1s
discussed in note 3, Financial Instruments, to the consolidated financial statements

Liquidity nsk
The Company’s objective 1S to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexabiity The Company's policy
is to manage working capital in order to ensure that iquidity is mamtained so as to meet peak funding requirements

Foreign currency nsk
As at 31 January 2013 and 31 January 2012, there was no foreign exchange currency exposure to the Company

Borrowing facihties
The Company has an overdraft facihity of £Ni {2012 £Nd) at the reporting date

3 Intangible assets

Goodwill Software Total
At 31 January 2013 E'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2012 and 31 January 2013 120 23 143
Accumulated impairment and amortisation
At 1 February 2012 120 15 135
Amortisation - 1 1
At 31 Januvary 2013 120 16 136
Net book amount
At 31 January 2013 - 7 7
At 31 January 2012 - 8 8
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Goodwll Software Total
At 31 January 2012 £000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2011 and 31 January 2012 120 23 143
Accumulated impairment and amortisation
At 1 February 2011 - 8 8
Amortisation 120 7 127
At 31 January 2012 120 15 135
Net book amount
At 31 January 2012 - 8 8
At 31 January 2011 120 15 135
4 Property, plant and equipment
Computer Motor

Equipment Vehicles Total
At 31 January 2013 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cost
At 1 February 2012 12 70 82
Additions S &7 72
Disposals - {70) {70)
At 31 January 2013 17 67 84
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2012 12 7 19
Charge for year 2 18 20
Disposals - (18) {18)
At 31 January 2013 14 7 21
Net book amount
At 31 January 2013 3 60 63
At 31 January 2012 - 63 63

Computer Motor

Equipment Vehicles Total
At 31 January 2012 £'000 £'000 £:000
Cost
At 1 February 2011 12 - 12
Addibons - 70 70
Al 31 January 2012 12 70 82
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 February 2011 12 . 12
Charge for year - 7
At 31 January 2012 12 19
Net book amount
At 31 January 2012 - 63 63

At 31 January 2011
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5 Investments
Total
At 31 January 2013 £'000
Shares in group undertakings
Cost
At 1 February 2012 21,838
At N Janua;y 2013 21,638
Accumulated amounts provided
At 1 February 2012 10,089
fmpairment In year 5,624
At 31 January 2013 15,713
Net book amount
At 31 January 2013 5,925
At 31January 2012 11,5490
Total
At 31 January 2012 £'000
Shares n group undertakings
Cost
At 1 February 2011 21,078
Additions 5115
Disposals (4.555)
At 31 January 2012 21,638
Accumulated amounts provided
At 1 February 2011 4,500
Impawment in year 5,588
At 31 January 2012 10,089
Net book amount
At 31 January 2012 11,549
At 31January 2011 16,578

The Company assesses nvestments for impairment whenever events or changes in arcumstances ndicate that the
carrng value of an investment may not be recoverable

Durnng the current year the Company has made an addittonal provision for impatrment of its investments to bnng their
carrying value in ine with ther value in use calculated The recoverable amount of the investments held s
determined from value in use calculations for each cash generating unit (CGU) covering a two year penod The
detailled plan put together by the management team and the Board makes judgements and assessments on revenue
and gross profit expectations This 1s from both contracted and pipeline revenue streams It also takes account of
tustonc success of winning new work Details of the assumptions used are provided 1n nole 10 to the consolidated
financial statements

Detalls of the pnncipal subsidianes are provided in note 24 to the consolidated financia) stalements
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6 Trade and other receivables

2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Current
Amounts owed by group undertakings 745 318
Other receivables 168 1,585
Prepayments and accrued income 42 12
955 1915
The fair value of trade and other receivables 1s consistent with therr hook values Amounts owed by group
undertakmgs are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand
7 Cash and cash equivalents
2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 1,102 544
8 Trade and other payables
2013 2012
£'000 £000
Current
Trade payables 217 256
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,451 10,276
Taxation and social secunty 18 13
Other payables 54 7
Accrued liabiities 624 879
4,364 11,431

The camrying value of trade and other payables 1s consistent with their book values Itis the Company’s policy to
settle trade payables within normal credit terms Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free

and repayable on demand

9 Share based payments

Disclosures in relation to the share options and warrants in 1$sue are made in notes 19 and 20 to the consolidated

financial statements
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10 Share capital and share premium

2013 2012
Allotted, called up and fully paid Number Number
Ordinary shares of 1p each 350,415,354 348,769,274
Deferred shares of 4p each 226,699,878 226,699,878

Ordinary shares of 1p Deferred shares of 4p

each each

At 1 February 2012 348,769,274 226,699,878

Issue of shares 1,645,080 -

At 31 January 2013 350,415,354 226,699,878
Rights of shares
Ordinary shares

The ordinary shares all rank pari passu, have the nght to participaie in dvidends and other distnbulions made by
the company, and to receve notice of, attend and vote at every general meeting of the company On hquidation,
ordinary shareholders are entitled to participate in the assels available for distnbution pro-rata to the amount
credited as paid up on such shares (excluding any premium)

Deferred Shares

The Deferred Shares do not carry voting nghts or a nght to receive a dwvidend The holders of Deferred Shares will
not have the nght to receive notice of any general meeting of the Company, nor have any nght to attend, speak or
vote at any such meeting The Deferred Shares wilt also be incapable of transfer (other than to the Company) In
addition, holders of Deferred Shares will only be entilled to a payment on a return of capital or on a winding up of
the Company after each of the holders of Ordinary shares has recewved a payment of £1,000,000 in respect of
each Ordinary Share Accordingly, the Deferred Shares will have no economic value No apphication will be made
for the Deferred Shares to be admitted to trading on AIM nor to trading on any cther stock or investment exchange

Allotted, called Share Own

up and fully  premium shares

Number of shares paid shares account held

£000 £'000 £'000

At 1 February 2012 575,469,152 12,556 6,455 (308)
Issue of shares 1,646,080 16 48 -

At 31 January 2013 577,115,232 12,572 6,503 {306)

As noted above, the Group 1ssued 1,646,080 shares as follows
Number of
Date Descrnipiion shares
3 February Shares tssued to unconnected third parties in lieu of services provided to 1,646,080

the company
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11 Related party disclosures

Details of remuneration of the key management personnel 1s contained in note 6 to the consolidated financial
slatements

The following transactions with other group entites, which are related parties, occurred in the year

2013 2012

£'000 £000
Opening debt due from related parties (6.116) (840)
Cash forwarded by the Company to related parties 2,060 3,769
Cash forwarded by the related parties to the Company (3,315) (9,293)
Other re-charges from the Company 8,469 369
Other re-charges from the related parties {563) {121)
Closing debt due to related parties 535 {6,116)

No purchase or sales transactions were entered into between the Company and subsidiary undertakings
Transactions with other related parties dunng the year relate to services pronded by a company where one of the
1Spatial plc non executive directors sits on the board In addition fees are paid to related pantes in respect of the non
executive direciers services, for which details are disclosed in note 6¢ to the Group financial statements

The amounts owed by/(owed to) related parties 15 shown below 2013 2012
£'000 £'000
Avisen Group Lirmited - (84)
Awisen UK Limited 1,793 2,975
Solution Minds (UK} Limited - 32
Avisen BV (30) -
Strategy GPS Limited (Formerly Inca Holdings Limited) (702) (7,200)
Xploite ple (2,580) (2,733)
Xploite IHC Limuted (158) (158)
Storage Fusion Limded 1,452 738
1Spatial Holdings Limned 705 318
1Spatal Austraha Pty Limited 40 -
Related party 1 (V3] (2)
Related party 2 (3) {3)
535 (68,116)

12 Post Balance Sheet Events
Placing

On 12 June 2013 1Spatial completed the Placing of 300,000,000 new Ordinary Shares at the Piating Pnce of 6p per
share with certain institutional investors, raising approximately £17m of nel proceeds for the Company and equating
to 46 1 per cent of the enlarged 1ssued share capital The new Ordinary Shares will rank equally with the existing
Ordinary Shares in the Company Failowing the admissian, the company has 650,415,354 Ordinary Shares of 1p
each inssue, with each share carrying the nght to one vote

Acquisition

Followtng the placing, on 14 June 2013, 1Spatal has completed the 80% acquisition of Slar-Apic, the leading
European provider of Geographtc Information Systems ("GIS™ software and solutions for approximately £52m It
acquired approximately £1 5m of the net assets of the busimess that includes significant IPR, freehold property and
cash

The results of the Star-Apic group for the year ended 31 December 2012 were revenues of £6 8m, Adjusted* EBITDA
of £0 1m and Net profit of £0 1m
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